Fo RWARD mjﬁnance Lag;uhitquit?;?? sﬂm

b ool arffw g







mﬁamﬁ ol 5T. mﬁs@zm

Fﬁlﬁﬁrammnmm uﬁﬁlﬁﬁmm /

.




T e oA e Wit g i e wve gean e T S Soge
famma w5a (weae)s dwme sREN e Wit Gow aar dedt iy

gifam Igrsatedl

—

N T

SER0EIAIR T ROEBIUNR



e

I

5% FORWARD i

%[ 5= j Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
et

ECAN LT =
9. =g 3
2 B! i AERTEH G gET y
3. Al BRA ©
8. AT D! Tfcraa R
y. A gfcrde=ar wEEe 1 g faror 20
& [ICIRNSEL AR NELS| RY-4&

Statement of Financial Position Y
Statement of Profit or Loss WG
Statement of Comprehensive Income R0
Statement of Distributable profit or loss U
Statement of Cash Flows R
Statement of Changes in Equity 30
Note No 4.1 to 5.2 39-49
Statement of Capital Adequacy Ratios 4
Statement of Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) 43
Comparision between Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements 4%
Details of Shareholders Holding 0.5% or More Shares 4y
Principal Indicators 4y
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements g
0. AT T[S T BT 127
¢. TRATe ATAT HEROT ’¢
. fedre %R






% FORWARD 7 i e
| Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

RIS ASshIbISdIed aigfdd fddi=r N feifdies : vp uRax

oA fHfT : R0%% /04 /Re T
AT ST AehaTE FATSIT T 0 052, /93 /0% T

HYATE HIEHIRIEA agiad faxr g fafaes Fd FAET. . 9
Tedl, qAa TFIE FEAEA.... 9
HI: 0Y-Y¥3095 T HATAT ... Y
TR OY -4 ¥3I¥c3 oY HTATAT ... Q4R
E-mail: info@forwardmfbank.com.np

qeqfa:  ArAte gfemras ¥ IET S eRoreRr BT T T IRERERT ATl FHT AT

STeaTaT 04 R ATHT TAT AUH JTHI Hiedl IJeqbAT [dehTd H=d (h¥aATs) o 0UR ATAHT
AT AT ShATE AT RARIFATH! TTTaTd feg FFaer T WXy [oTeetterr &l . fa 7 a1
?vraﬁa-oﬁ FEAFH qF T R0%R, JTATH AR FoTepT fafeeT 30 FreamsrT S 9T@T, IqeTTEr
WA A qRERAT AT AT g “Hsﬂdndnl fﬁmlwwmﬁﬂwwvﬂﬁw
AiEdT IHAT [FFH Aol oarad T ATUh] AHab FAHHAATS A TAEERRI, TREAT T
WWWWWWWWWWWWWW
THY S fo. ?W@?@?ﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁr%—rﬁawfa TIT Fel AR ATHAT ATheddl FIh
AT T HRATS Hlsvhlthlsdlrﬂ gfa fa<irar dar @ %0 adr FEAT TSR PT HTATATHT
fafa R0%% /04 /35 Td 9 AT I Serara fafa RO%R /93 0% T ol FRIER T goArora
77 fauz fafg 090/ 03/03 TqaTe dra=TiE FTAET ATHRAT FRER FATET TR a9 A
g1 fa 0 digedl YT faeror S8 S ar wH g |

TS AT FE G : AIAAN B T T AT TALHRT FATHATT T T 90T [T
%0 ISeal: A0, HIRE, T, TAMH, TR, ATASTg, d9Hal, dedH, ST, Jer, T,
SeaTR, faver, fawaell, @iars, ovoT, Werel, Aeiel, Aqed, AR, TEl, GhIT, FIIeT=Hls,
TAARTET qR=H, Fq<el, HAAa], aTg, dich, AGAT, b, HeadqR, SIA, HBATTI,
qaEd, e, TaeaRTET 94, ST, ITedT, ATl T FISHIVST [STecdTHT TTEfad Tashe oara-Hl
ekl I |

S T 4T
AG FAT ;. ATHEF STAHET (o1 fadT (AfIHaH $.4,00,000/ (49 dM/@ q#F) T faar
STHEMAT (AfIsay &.9 d@ 987 |)
(_“I'E\[W . e dadeddld |
G AT o o ST T9T qE A
fagwor & ¢ fafa= S qur fadmor EEEEedTERr aekerir weer f At fqReEre T
TEHT AT |
Aft@ & ¢ (F) FHEAT AEg fau IREARH e (A faanteq Afeer e ) |
(@) THEHT TG THUH! [0 qarel e ([ fFanfed Hiedr 9 |

931 aifitfes ufcrdes—20tTo/ca r




n“"‘ﬁ
=& FORWARD 5 e o e
| 5= E Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

T FqTHE qAT FATAE qafddl a1 (059 FGT {AT)

qUE ‘T GEAIE NUTEHIER ¥ 355, ¥% 90,009, Tt
qrHToT e Iwar a7 3,400,5\9¢ % q
TS SF o1, 3,%35,59% 34.00%, q ¥ ST
T FEGEAT JAT fAST & yadhes | 33%%955 29.39% 9y
THE “@": TEYTITUT JUT LR 39%%,%%9 30,00% | ISR ST R ST
A goaTw q ST
ST QOHULERe | q00% © ST

931 aifitfes ufcrdes—20tTo/ca T




{éﬁw“f FORWAR FaTE AIERETEAE Aufan fawe wen fafne
+ éa * Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

AT UL shalld “B F(RT SHATH 0 GeaT - (TGAEATHRT wE TR
FH T FEAT, FEA g
HA |, 0U-Y¥R095, TIAEH |, oU-Y¥3I¥T3

q23il aIfficd ATETRORAAT JddoEll eIl

(92W Tak FHTE fAfa 2059/ 05/ 03)

79 o Fearel gsared giafqer fafd 2059/ 05,03 Tq G¥ET US A TEHdl U quitTH

79 fadig Fegresr QAT Aftier ARGl el [qUaes IR FAhd 997 g T quiaerdr

Jeoft@d Tfd, T9T ¥ TATHHT 9% AUH §aT FFIAT U, 053 F1 THT SO(R) ATIR THI07 RG]

HETTHTEE®H] TSR] a7 IJTCATTHT AT AT AT T TRTH |

W g tafa, @ww T ew

fafd : 059 HiER 35 T REAR (@AW 93 fedwR, j0RY)

T : f9e™ 99.00 W

T - fawyer =ady T ufassrer aved, qEdT, e |

GARAR [ToIEE

(%) ATHTT JEATags:

. FEATAF FHTH ThaTE AAETSIZRT T TR AT.F.2050 /059 F ATMNE Fidaad IR FAHA
T aifed T

. @I EH!  Giqasd  Aleddl 05q AU HATRAR ATFATd qqT Al HiqAr  FEve

~

1A, R050/05q F ATHT AN [EHE TIT A8 Y8 (qaR07 T F¥aiead dATdiaes II FAHdA
T qifed T

3. A F.R050/05] TFAH! HATHIAE AT A ShaTe (G0 T Thd qT THITH =[ThT ToiTe]
0.90% o B ATSH THH ¥.9355 2 ¥%/93 (AERAT ey @@ #orl ew Fed gaArad a9t
qE U1 W) FE ATATT (ST SRR 6 FATSTART ATT) qTRe T |

¥, @RI giafaer fawmieer W gt R Ak @Rl afded a9 2059 /5% R BRIERE
FGTIRIETT THHT AT A@radreqeheb! fgfeh T T fAster aifesfas dre |

@) faow geamEEs

q. ST A FehaTe fAaR T WeRd 9T FHITH 1.9.2050 /5 TEHHT e AATHRTATS TRt Tofl
F.9,04,44,%3,93Y / (FERYT Uk o 1= IS q=Ia~ @ S g9 rq@s iaq /) & 93.30% o
T AT THH T.9%,03,5% 9% /U (AT e BIS A a1 S g9 A9 gAeay soaT
TOT YT /) SRTEReRT aTF9T SA7 AT 9 J&dqre quieet a9 |

3. TG AT AR SN AT fadir ATl ST q9T =0T G6il dig T4 [aar JE e Jaea Tl
THT (@) T &) A5 FeT T sy |

3. g9 d9T HUHTEEsy MY SaTesHl MauEn (Meraesd |ede, aUue, U ar
wqwmr«wqmﬁ?m%qmwmmmwaﬁﬁmaﬁqﬁa e HATS
qur afeqarer fad |

¥, 7q fadig el a= S equAuT ‘g7 il A GRATERArE T /T a9r gy T
TATTAHTATNT SHITh e[ FLATEE YEdTT T, RS THHT g&qTel? T, TIehT ATIRHT JgTiveh
HTBITHTATNT FIT o2 b qaeT e fad o muaer a7 Gw=dl araeded w1 AT dersd
aﬁ—vléw afufe a1 atataer drebr atmers qul siferarer fam awmaE |

&

L) e O

oA GTATTHT AT,
FEAT afera

931 aifitfes ufcrdes—20tTo/ca T



. a“? I:ORWARD FATE ATERIETAT Agfae faea wear fafree

Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

\—”/ A

9231 aIftfes ATTR ORI JAddcE 316 FGIDR]

9.

0.

11.

I ATIROTAST FATSTART AT 7T 3059 /05 /9% T 79 faxiag =T 9O qiger
ge e @ |Ag | Mg R059/05/93 TAEFH AU W TR [ArHdSHT
FRIAR A5 [MIATER JMBTH THITETH] T (a0 LT TR TR TAUHTT Rded
fafgae, aTe@eR, FTSHIVSIHT YTl 1A% ATHATR! ATIRAT SRS GdT (e aaT e
YARIEEA FIIRTAATH] AR {d7 AT g1 g |

TATHT JATHT AT STERGAT WETTATIEE ATHAT B T=d I Fied SoRar 7. a1 faxir
TEATHT TR AATTHIHROT TIFPHT TAREAHT ghAT BOID (Feqwnte afeerr wwaR) w=eqa
UEEEN

QAT ST fee Icdeh SR WeTTATaes AT g TATTHT G97 F gl el § Iaredd
% BTN frdTadT =a@d T 99 | BTl fbara |7 fad faer qo aeisha gel &As |

. QITHT AT e gfatafa (e et w2 sre R i T Seree werEe § eq

TS, | TR BH T gAY WAl 3T A9 FARi TR e Bty qEal e
TAT RIS, TG | TRl ®RA I [ d@rd daqse. www.forwardmfbank.com.np
T T T F(hAS, | Th STAT SR T TwaT derdrs il fquar afg zaf g= s
qrT 93 g |

FATHT T feameT AT gfatata (W) o i avafead SEReasr arh G
ufeara &= a1 yiatdtd Hease I =ATEHT GA7 976 gHwET FRIAT ¥ 5 Tl 3979 79 fatqa
TATRT AL S FATAT, Tedl, GAAUHAT I g T |1 B o1 G513 T |

ATt a7 AH TARAAIR] TRATE A [FATTAT JedA@d GR&Tehel ATT FATHT 91T eI,
AR T, YT fad Fa g3 |

ST WEAT AARIAT ATHT AT FST FIATATE HANAT SATched AT T Gl RIRAHAT
FEITHT FIT T AMIHRIF TTq@d g IS, |

fafarer fTe SI=avTa T I SABAHT (ATTEATE TAT & faw=aT O fae el Frarers THartT=
AHATATs TFGA T [l TN BT FATAT qeal GAAAT [Arga e &7
g | Ih fAfad STFeT<ers AtEaear 220 SaherdT THTET T9 G TTara qied g
YT TTAT TSI TR S |

Il gHERAT A BTH BRATE] HFIAT UA, 083 a1 FF g=Aidqd &Aq, qid faa9 qar
fqaer aHIfTH g |

A Giqaad el [qave ¥ AaRUEAT FEwl 7 SARRIBATNT G gedren
Fd FATAA, Tedl AAAT HATAET GHIATHT 8% T a1 99 [aig dedredl qaarse
www.forwardmfbank.com.np e I T faq 3 &9 Alp |

FATHT SR 9T ATaTde [qu gae] FRied g9 A Rd S |

931 aifitfes ufcrdes—20tTo/ca T



FORWARD e s
Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

=i BRA

AT g=ATAF FrAfd,
AT HISHIRISA agiad [aar g1 fafads,
FRIT FTATA, TEal, GAa |

forr « giafafa faes 7= am |

HETTT,
................................ fTeaT L ALOT /AT, AT AL .. TR
/BT oo o I ar FRITRT TARATATR 2T A 059 AT
wfaX AT ¢ T ERATCET faT g Rt aTfiE anenRuEWTT @ IuteId WE geahd adr
[URAT FEwRlT 89 T9d TUH Ih AATHT TNT [T TAT HAQT THbT AT
RTeaT T /AT, AST A, L T I A< Ferept ATt A
.................... ST THTOT-I . / AT TN F, oo .. TS R /BTHT
giqtafer FAIAT T TS /G |

[REEET] gfaffeer

TEIEd T

T q

ST ST

IR JHTOT-97 F IR JHTO-97 F

qprlcaiare qprlcaiere

fequmer (fewrme) @mar 7. fequmer (fewme) @mar 7.

fafa - fafa

g : AT faae ATIRUET g9 9wl FRITAT ¥ U0l 3RTe faxii AeeTehl FEieda ehraierasn
TeT TREAFTIT @ | THTRT del It (TP 918 Iootd TAT Fiatd (FaT) ®wRH
T R

931 aifitfes ufcrdes—20tTo/ca W






% FORWARD 7 i e
| Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

RIS ASSPIbISdIed aigfdd fadi=r e fo1.
Rt aTfiF areRuTEETE
HLALTYAE TEA AATF FH{ART AT Jfraad, 059

AUTEAT AT,

AT ATSHIRTSAT dufad o = fa. &7 QR0 arfie Ao AT 3ufead g
TEU STAREAT WETHTEEs, [aiTe FeaTesane Yididiaca e qTed qUH HeTTHEGEs, THHR
AT FFU AT HETTHTEEAs a9 [axid Fedrel F=es i ¥ #30 ATRAT qhare
gifes @R ey |

T wfedr Sogear et wed ATHe TRERET FEATS 0¥ 9 Y wd Afg faxirr
HATIATH FRIARF] AIAHATE TITAH] AT TS LT AGad qaT Y&Td T qo Tehl
7 e TEATHT Jgel qIT T Sieb ¥ ThIee ARUHSHT THAP! SFETSHT 058, I qaT 5 T
AT ATShHIRTEAT Agiad fadir Fear fAafqagdr TaraT 9§ quTe 6 Sehare 0% AT
A & T AT FRER T IASATT I T 080 FA WS 3 A fAfad FOHT ITEEA
AUHT T9A7 | |7 99=ma a9 (a9 I UTHIOT Aiedl Icqehdl [aeh Hodeh] deidadeh]
FTIHH XA W (AR FEHA oo % WA 05 A FAS AATGHHAT
ATHRAT I FATH TE= IHT ¥O [STedAThl 35 MSUMNAHT/ ARANARIHR 3,5% 2% [aq=

ARARHT TATSTHT G |

q FoATAH TAT SRS GoIATcHSE (a9 T b, UTeeh qAT ARIBRATATEEH] AehRTHE
AN ¥ FHATNEH! HeAd NS Tga TEaehl AT faxira Twar et =Afeporer atqam=ar
FIH T AT AR F | BT AT qs«w¢wv@wmwﬁ PEIRE
éﬁwﬁaﬁaﬁwﬁm?ﬁﬁwwwnﬁamﬁmﬁwaﬁwﬁﬁ@ﬁmw
AT 9f e FRIER T Ga GEATEAT ¥ ATIRES T el T |

T QUG TATAT fa=irg RamepT S=rerss afafdet dheare Jgfes quer ofded av 050/59 &l
SGTIRNETOT Sk ATAATT, ATHTATRAT [6ATe, RAdhT A gfqaed ¥ emfad el Jueredr
ammﬁ@waﬁ?ﬁﬂ?wm%aﬁ%aﬂ/:?ﬁmaﬁaﬁﬁaﬁﬁw
T 9SS AATs G4l ARTH G |

ATMIF TY 050 /59 AT FATA THT TIAes, ITAHEs, GodATATH] IMGUET HH FHARIES
TF TAATEE, ATTFT ATFIET TIT ATFIAT ATTATEE e THI [GKTT FIIHT THIEAT T TR
Il T FFAT UA, R0%3, fadra aqr qor fHyemay faamEedt 093 qar 8% qar fadm
AT AT UA, 093 &l ATITHT Tal IR TRUHT AT Fadad FoaTeish el dahare fadra
TRATHT QAT A ATRVRHTH J&AT TR G |

q fam aEw FRER ¢
FEles qHeT faia F&TH AT F.R050/59 & HE G adr fa<i feafq afeqsr gHq@
HEARIHE 38T AR Wbl T |

931 aifitfes ufcrdes—20tTo/ca r



FYATE ATEHIRTEAT qgfaa facig den fafieds
Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

(&, FoRWAR

S N— A9, (THH $.000 ) EI

3098,/ 50 3050, 59 qig THA giceTa

q | =R gS 1,044,453 1,044 453 - 0%

3| SHIET 99T #ugs 9,529, %% q,%%3,0%5 355,483 qu%

3 | fav aife w1 gme 5,%¥%%,5%9 R, ¥R9,59 q,003,35% 3%

¥ | f7é @ifaes 5, ¥q4,3%9 5,R%3,9%% Y¥E,R3Y W%

Y| I AT (JITSH AT 92,024,905 98,554,955 92,0550 %%

% | @8 §ATH 95 %34 320,54 Y 93,392 309

9 rET eIl 94 942 - 0%

c | gT& e 356353 35 ,25% (3,395) 9%

e | =l den 9¥%,593 935,249 (QY,54%) -99%

q0 FUIRT &7 CLL) v3¥ (¥3) ~%%
(@) oS afg : 79 faxfi SR aTe AR SRRETS WA B | AidT TWRE quiad A
FEITHT AT ATAITF FATH FhT Goil & 0 FS Iealdid 3. d. 3050 /5 TFIAT I AT

FETHT FHA FhT G0 €9 A Y FS LY A §3 BN EH G |

@) FHER aAT FEHA fawqr
31T3r R050/5y FFAAT (Wi FEATHl AT=Sly, TR, SATH, 19T, qA9, ARy, d9HeT,
%WWWWWWWWWWWWWW
Fl‘cl?ﬂ?ﬁﬁ, FUEl, AT, alh, AT, deATedl, FATT, I, AH, qclwwwuqc SSAYT,
grary, HHaT, qEd, mdqd AT (7 @'@f qTeAT, TAATHIE, BISHTIST T T Yo
W@Wﬂx%w'awmmm@rmww%:mixwmw
THET AT IRTSA ATE, |

() AT GETER qAT AT
fairr F¥ATHT FRIER F=ATATHR! ATRT FHIET AGTTHT 93% STAT HHHAT BT TEHTHT AEeAT
FHATY J&T U9 FTTd el 3 |

FHANEE ATRAT HTHAT (YUl T 79AqTaTT TCAT A7 fa<iry Feamet qe g 19 Aibeg T
ATIATATS SATTHT @l TG (9, &THdT, Fe7ar, IR0 ATHalg T THIET JuHT fafqe=T deaht
TRITIRIT, FHATRIATS AR FHOT, ATAH, ST ATTGHT TR TRISURT T | wren o faxir
AT ATheT ATATSAT TReT oAl SIGH HTRITTT TTH, ATHATET dTerd, NFRS aiferd, qar gver
TN T 30 FeT ANAH /ST ATATSTAT TR (04 R, FHANT FEAEIT HUH T | ST ATAR H A9
FHARIEES TUATHT I T2 AT /TSTHT TeHT & | ITTehT 97 | A o o= fafiger
LI F=ATAT bl FHAT &THAT faep Twated, SIS, TOT on Financial Literacy, collateral
valuation, HR Management, TWTAdRI R 9T AMATHT q3Y AT FHATIES FeqTHT ATHT
fru | @ faeeTHT IeeTd AUkl § 9T ATEARET Q 99T FEERT GE9El HUeT U
TG JUAT I FHARIESATS &T9dT Afqatg T qTa9ded 99 qridd Jar= 19 (99w e a5 |

931 aifitfes ufcrdes—20tTo/ca W



% FORWARD 7 i e
| Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
A

(a)mﬂ&m,ﬁ;ﬂummamawsﬁwﬁmwﬁww:

UTEd qEET o [axiia AT HeA HTIUSH! TTU TUHT Aol ITTeweh! oAl ATTahg aam
o o, gerTeas 9=, faxi arerar g fafa=r aifey s g=meas T8 erdawan
JAT T AT T fapraedr difades MR TUH1 FoOTdd WY Tl G | FHIAT FYHT
79 A Fereme qeesdl THE JAe A, qHdrsHil aiad, fade aerar T &= J9d
edies qar fata fefawer A fq@m, &aar @™ qar Faad Ge av =l araaar
TET 9,33¥ AT EEEE TEATNTAT WUhT fqU SEehT ATNT €., T 34 R @ Ukl {247 |
TEAT [hfaHeT Tegesdl G, &THar ¥ AGANTE 9 (bl AT ANTHr faqdqr o
TIITHbATERT AT AN TIT TTSEE I FAHASTATS a2dl 489 S |

A THTET T (AT TRATT ATRAT A eeATs ATel [aqg AT FaeTedl qieiedfaq qeet
FATHT Fel FEdRT T AlBATH FHAT 05 FILIH T AUHHT IAeoH ATh=T AR TadTs
T 93 A ¥R R FladT fGEuar g 91 K% TESIHT HHAE oI TUHMHET €90 9@ 39 &9
T FEIHH R ATTANN FAT TGNl @l AUHAT STFAT .% A 4 &R gradl [aa?or TRua!
foral | |TT Q340 AT WEEH o<l WURHT SEEATS Aed AfFdT W@ET €30 A W AR
FRIERFT THH FladT Teq qHIET THHT IITF TS B |

T HOT FITH oI WUHEAT (A5 [ATHT Foll aRTaRHT THH AT IRTEUSRT AT
AT ATTART ARTAT AISh ATHT FFIHTETE RIS TUHTHAT T T ¥\9Y, AT HOIThT He TUHTHT
IAewel (TR Foll THH aRTER qIaeT ITded TRISUHT [T |

(T) TEAWT TS IS

forcitar SEarer | SAREed AT [ =T TATSTS HEEsdl AT EanT e ATTH 3 |
i Qremar SRy TouTad, T AT Toa1ed qraTiaed STah AT eI a7 EETHT,
JAT YTeEidF Jehaare ffed AR ATaesdls 9edfl, @ {far J=aq 6 Sl #aHA
AT FLIAT ATHINR SARGNIERT TTHT TN 6 JAT bl & | GHIET TUAT LN
JrATNAE IALEMIE A= £.98 A1 &R 8% I TUH (GAT | TG FAHHATE A Aeqd
e faeare e e fad JdTer Teg St (e aEIfTH qATRTETE 2¥F 9y A e
BaATe Al IHHATC G KA HALATATs A TATAHN TATSTE, |

(@) AT gty : FRERE d@rFET qAT ATEdTs TR e fad ger
HTHA! FRIARATS GHU FRATAASEAT Dbraldbd GHIHT AT ATATEA ol GART TRFDBR
T T TRZTILH! TRIIAT ATTIARAT THITH 5 TEehl S | TATI FHATIEE AT SATE
3 freeHl qEeTE BREARE Ater@ T e T ARaAIR AATEIE TRUH B T Gl AR
wﬁwwﬁmﬁaﬁw&|ﬁﬁe5ewammawww
FHRIATTRT 3flf‘h—lT‘rlbf fo q]2 TRTHT F I SMS TAT Mobile Passbook (Mpassbook) Bl HTEFHATE
YT FRIARPT ATHHT ATATZAAT 7 [T T aear TIRTH 3 |

931 aifitfes ufcrdes—20tTo/ca W



FRATE HIGHIRIEATE agfad fadw d@ean fafuds
Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

() AT @ T ATRT A fafy @ anfde av 050,59 AT 3.3 39d 5% RIS YO AF AT
HTRTAT AUHT T T 9O FRIS O¥ @ AT AT TEhl B | IF T FIeT AfIE 99 3050/59
a7 ot geurrer fafieT oo qon fomira Seameware (quet &1 ¥ e e Aeoh! oAl [GUhl
TS @ &9 dT 9 FRIS Y AN TUH F | a1 GTATHT @AeSHd 3. ¥Y FUS K G
FHAT qed AT MIFAT @& TR G | T&d, FHIET TUAT 7 F=e @ .90 FRIE 95
TG IEH G | AR FATATH AT &.3%, FE &A@ SEATIET ATTHY AT A9 %.93
FRE ¥¥ AT AT TR G |

9 faxira ¥ 9 ATF.3050/5q AT FX GGkl 5.32 FE & a@ %3 g & HATH

TSI UH T |

TATRT STSRIS TAT AW : THIET TUEN G& FATRTATE AR SRIST HITAT &Y FAS 59 oG
YO TR, YTEdh TR HITHT T.3% @ & aa¥, GEINTA ATHINTEh IAGNAARTHAT €. ATG
& B9R, FHAT AMAT BITHT F.59 M@ L& EIR JIT AT FIUESHT 4] FUE R 9@ &5 gAR
FeATI T T | TFTHT T AUHI Fad HATRT SIS Tl [ AT [aaRorg JATRT
F33 FS § @ YL B 8hl B | TGS [add el 9 g9 qARaHesarg 9% giaerd
ATTT (93,30 FIAT S99 R qAT 0,90 Gierd R Gl AN AE ATATeT) faaworer
AT g&dqTe TRTEHT T |

(3) TEAWCT qAEA :

79 fadg 94 faedAe U4, FA9 qdr Jiq Few ¥ Memaent Mergesare gt Hae
AR ATHAT SAGETT FoATAT T8 ACHN FERT ST RIS =Mewg | A1, faxii gemsr R
giTes Wi faxira Sl goarce At qUeTHT TaThee! ¥ JREH TEhl B | 79T T el
AT I AR W GoAATH W AARE TS AT I FHIE F9H AANE
AGTITET TRTE TE@TITEN e [GUebl T¥RTa THITH FIATEIT Td ATH B | AR ORI
P, T TR SIREH ATIqh] ], Taesdls Wdkd ARl Je TeanT TS
JEYTSl T UEeh FXEHT ST PIIE%eh] €T HIhd T JaTedh [aid T T¥h T
T IS TG8 AU B | TF Faxiir TR FoATetes ATl Tl I SSebebl (HaaTe SaiteTd
S@IE AT, SRaH SAaeTae Afd, FHERT da1 Jiadr afafq Jar Feafd @ J T aT
TATTPT TST T FF AT TG ATTH B, | AT @I, A6 AGTIIEE JAT T T
SepaTe THI-THAHT & (ALvaTe Ut GRTaesed QU0 JIeil 718 GeNTd qeeadls 93¢ awra+
ATl AT Ficag e ¥ ARl AR FRARATS HARIT T9 AE9qF 99 i, o qar
feeTes TS TR T&Ted a6 9 Tqag el G |
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e AR FATEITH AT FHHATs HI=aedl [GSUH! & | ETehl AT AT FUITeArHT
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Indépendent Auditor’s Report to the Skarcholders af
FORWARD MICHOFINANCE LAGHUBITTA BITTIVA SANSTHA LTD,
IVLHABL SUNSARI

(plaion

We have undited the fnuncial dadesonts of Farward Microfimases Lughoblits Biftive
Namithis Lad. Which comprisc the stitement of finuncinl position ss ut 31 Ashed 2081,
amd the sttemian of Profl of Loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes
in Equity und stphéraeen of cash flows for the yesr ended and notes w the fhanngial
slatements, inclading 8 wmmary of significent scoownfmg polices and cxplamadory noies

In dur opinson ind 10 the Pest of ouf knowledge and seearding 1o the explanation ghven o
us the afsrild financin) suleaments present firy 1o ofl meterisl respeers, the fruneind

o position of the company s af 31 Askad 2051 and its fisancial performance, chirge in
euaity, ani i cadh owd for the vear then ended and summary ol slpniflcas sceoarting
policies and explanstory moles in sccordance with Nepal Fisnncial < Heposing
Suandards{ NFRS) with carve: ~outs andd comply’ with the Company Act 2063 ond Bark aad
Fianaial Insthelion Act 2073,

Hasis far opinian

We conducied our sudit in secordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing {NSAs). Our
responashilities nnder those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibillies
fior the Awdit of 1he Flauncinl Swicments soction of our repan. We ane independent of the
Compary: bt pecordance with the Code af Ethies fssued by, Inatinge of Chariemd
Accountants of Mepal figether with the éthical requbnements thud arg relevant 1o the audit of
the company ander the provisom of Companics Act 2063, and e vulcs thefcunder, amd
e have Bullitled our ethical maponsibilities. |n sccordance with thewe roquiremants anil 1the
Code of Ethics Tor o Professional Accountanis. W belicve thal the sedit evidensa we have
otzained s sullicient and npproprizie loprovide & bagis [or our oplasen.

Koy Anifit Mutters

- Koy audis metiers aee fhise mmizees fhaid, b owr professiona] judpement, were of mosi
sigriificonce m oor asdit of sandalone fnancial anrements. Tor the financiol vear endad
Azhad end 2081, Theie maiiers were addressed i the context of our audit of the standalone
financ inl sintemenss as 0 whole, and i forming our opinien thereon, and we do not provide
U separnte: opimion on these mabiers. For ¢och matter below, our deseription of hw oar
suilly pddresised the masters (8 provided by it contest.

We have determined the muaiiers describe below 1o the kv sudil mallen bp be
comuatumizneed |y mir report.

ey Awdin Matters | Amditar it
_Nmpairment of Loans and Advances

franch offics : Afratnagar-9, Morang,  Ph: 9852030714
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As per WAS 39 and camve-out . Tor the
respective dandard, inpairment for loans
and advinces has béen measured a5 the
higher amoun  derived 35 per pomms
prescribed by am WRB O for oan loss
prowision und smount derived as per pom
63 Lo incarred Loss Method.

Continuous Sheet...

Our  aodin  approsches  ngluded  clear
undersianding  of the practice, of the
calculation of impakrmzm of Loans and
Advances.

Our Resuli: we agreed with the cakeulstion
of the impairment of Loans and Advances
made by the tnonagement

Information Techuology System and cont

ral Impacting Fin _‘mparﬂng

The information  technology  of  the
company s Complex and involves a large
number  of  independent  and inter-
dependent IT system wsed i the operation

Cur audit spproach regardbng Information
Technology of s company is based upon
the Information  Technology  Guidelines
2002 issued by NRB and it nlso included:

of the company for pogessing and
recarcling 2 Inrge volume of mansactions.
As m result, there is & high degree of
reliance and dependency on such 1T system
fior the financlsl reporming process of the

Verilication of the [nterest income and
cxponses booking reganding loams and
deposits on bext clieck hask willi. the
CBS of the company.

Reliance on the IT apndit condicted by
Hhse prempany,

Verifications of the provisions of the
boans and sdvances hased on apeing ol
18t checks hasis.

company, )
Approprizte 1T CGeneéml conlrolt  and
epplication controls are required B ensure
that soch 1T systems are able 10 process e
datn, s required completely, accurately
wnd consistently for financial reporting,
Omr resalit we considered the mfonmation
technedogy  system  and  their: nélovans
conaroll to be adequate.

We considerad this as o key audil maners
s oy Lontrol lopsed, validation foilures,
incormect i dats gl wrong extraction
of datn may result in wrong reporting of
dntn do managemient, slakeholders and
| eguldon,

Chther Information:

Management s respansible for the preparation of other mformation, The other information
comprises the information included In the Annual Beport but does nof inclide the financlal
statements and oar auditor”s feport thenson.

Out opinion on the franciyl datement does ot cover the other infiermation and we. do not
cxpress any form of pssurince conclosion thereon.

Our responsibilities are 10 resd the sther information and, in dalng so, consider whether the
informatipmeds fmoterially inconsidense with the financisl stacements of our knowledge
obtained in the course of audit or otherwise sppears 1 be msterially missued. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that thers i4 a materia] misstatement of this
other information, we ane reyuired o report that fact. We have nothing w report in this
negand,

Responsitiiity of Management amd Those Churged with Governanee for the Finuncial
Staicmciis

Munagement is responsibbe Tor the prepamtion snd fair presenmtion of these Tingusgsal
astements 0 accondance with NFRSs and for such miernal coatrol as L2
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Continuous Sheet...

determines is necessary 1o ennble the preparation of financial satements that ane free from
emateris] misstateanent, whether due 1o fraod or error,

In preparing the financial statemeants. the mehapement = responsible for isdessing the
company’s ability to continne o5 a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers relared
b ging concern and using the poing concern hasts of accounting unless the management
cither intends 1o liguidsie the company of 1o cease operslions, or have no reafistic
alternative but to do so,

Thivse churged with the governunce ane responsible for averseeing the company®s financial
reponing process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statemcnix

Oz abjectives e 1o obtain reasonable assurance abou whether the lnancial stements as

% a whole-are free from material misstaterment, whether due 1o frud or geror, and to isse an
suditor's repon that ncludes o opinion, - Reasonable wssurance is o bigh lewel of
assurance, but |s ol & gunanice that an audil conducied 1 accondance with NSAs will
always detect 3 materinl missintement when it exists:

As patt.of an audit n accordance with NSAs, we exercise professionnl judgmem and
miakisain peofessionsl seepticsm throughout the audic. We alse:

*  ldentify and assess the visks of maenial misstrement of te financial sttements.
whether due to frand or error, design and perform audit procedunes respansive. 1
thorse risks, and obtnin sidit evidence thur is sufficient and appropriate o provide a
basis fod owr opinion.

& Obtain uit understunding oF internal control relevani fo the sudil in order 1o design
muclit procedieres that are approprite in the circumsanses.

*  Eyalunte the approprimtencss of sceounting palicles used and the seasonabbsimss of
secounting etimates and related disclosures made by the manegensent;

®  Conchide on the appropriateness of the manngement’s use of the geing concem
basks of necounting.

*  Evaluase the overall presentations, structure and context of the financial statements.
including the disclosurey und whether the [nancial statemenss represent the
underlying transactions and evens in a monner that aclicves fir presentation.

Report o ather legil and repulitory requirements

We have detarmined o communicale the followings matiers in sccontmmee with. the
requinements of NRE directives, Companies Act 263, BAFIA 2073 und ather regulntony
respuireTents:

* We hate obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge und beliel, where necesary for the pirpose of our sudit,

= Hased on our audit, proper books of account as required by the law have been kepr by
the company

® Retums retelved from the beanch offices of the compiny wene sdequate Tor the

purpaes of oar audit though the atements ane imbependently nol audisd,

® The capital fund, risk bearing fund and the pmvhqnm s pozsiblo lmpa:nmm ol nw:l.-

of the compiny are adequata l.-munlmnng the Directives issoed by Mepal Rasg
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Continuous Sheet...

Bcross any cases where the Board of Directors of any office besrer of the company have
acted contrary 1o the provisions of law, or commitied any misappropristion or caused
any boss of damage 10-1he company and viokated Direciives fssued by NRB ar scted in o

. mgsnner, 52 would Jeopardize the interest and secomty. of the company's . sharehalders
and fis depositors.

& The business of the company hat been conducted satisfactornily and operated within its
Jurisdictions and has been fupctioning as per NRB directives.

The engagement partner on the sudit resulting in (his independent auditor™s sepon i OA
Suraj Timsina.

éﬁ’"
Sura) Ti

Partoer

P.ILS wmd Associates
Chartered Accountants
Kathmandu-4, Baluwatar
Drate: - 2024-10-01

uneN: 241002CAD0B3SAXAAK

-
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Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As on 31st Ashadh 2081 (15th July 2024)
Particulars Note Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Assets
Cash and Cash equivalent 4.1 1,279,969,342 508,957,159
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 98,000,000 98,000,000
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions 4.3 - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 - -
Other Trading Assets 4.5 - -
Loans and Advance to MFIs and Cooperatives 4.6 - -
Loans and Advances to customers 4.7 19,885,767,590 19,095,107,886
Investment Securities 4.8 1,336,775 408,334
Current Tax Assets 4.9 - -
Investment Property 4.10 - -
Property and Equipment 4.11 214,012,701 207,672,598
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.12 3,531,460 2,121,132
Deferred Tax Assets 4.13 228,606,218 110,176,274
Other Assets 4.14 147,744,574 28,412,757
Total Assets 21,858,968,660 20,050,856,139
Particulars Note Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15 9,487,458,504 8,476,141,243
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.16 - -
Derivative Financial Instrument 4.17 - -
Deposits from Customers 4.18 8,962,196,358 8,415,260,947
Borrowing 4.19 10,416,667 18,750,000
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 21,431,024 20,295,001
Provisions 4.20 - 87,705,458
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.13 - -
Other Liabilities 4.21 358,834,109 302,664,678
Debt Securities Issued 4.22 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23 - -
Total Liabilities 18,840,336,662 17,320,817,328
Equity
Share Capital 4.24 1,055,563,734 1,055,563,734
Share Premium
Retained Earnings 230,165,755 519,773,764
Reserves 4.25 1,732,902,510 1,154,701,313
Total Equity 3,018,631,999 2,730,038,811
Total Liabilities and Equity 21,858,968,660 20,050,856,139
Contingent Liabilities and commitment 4.26 242,549,063 342,060,048
Net Assets Value Per share 286 259

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

Keshab Raj Paudel
Chairperson

Ashutosh Sharma
Director

Raj Kumari Chaudhary
Director

CA Suraj Timsina
Partner

as per our report of even date

PD.S. & Associates, Chartered Accountants

Balaram Chaudhary Jagat Jang GC
Director Director

Kamal Singh Rajbanshi  Prof. Dr: Shyam Kishor Mahato
Director Independent Director

Date: 2081/06/15
Place : Duhabi, Sunsari

Ramdayal Rajbanshi
Chief' Executive Officer
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Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Particulars Note Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Interest Income 4.27 2,895,015,476 2,965,491,558
Interest Expense 4.28 1,677,585,872 1,838,416,615
Net Interest Income 1,217,429,603 1,127,074,943
Fees and Commission Income 429 177,421,871 119,838,348
Fees and Commission Expense 4.30 7,566,150 14,055,410
Net Fee and Commission Income 169,855,721 105,782,938
Net Interest, Fee and Commission income 1,387,285,325 1,232,857,881
Net Trading Income 4.31 - -
Other Operating Income 4.32 1,029,218 1,652,706
Total Operating Income 1,388,314,543 1,234,510,586
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.33 397,613,630 540,132,800
Net Operating Income 990,700,913 694,377,786
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 4.34 457,190,245 466,959,733
Other Operating Expenses 4.35 68,231,191 69,454,027
Depreciation and Amortization 4.36 39,658,078 41,909,160
Operating Profit 425,621,398 116,054,866
Non-Operating Income 4.37 184,259 -
Non-Operating Expense 4.38 521,364 2,215,774
Profit Before Income Tax 425,284,293 113,839,092
Income Tax Expense 4.39 134,430,622 35,203,700

Current Tax 254,742,589 129,093,001

Deferred Tax (income)/expense (120,311,967) (93,889,301)
Profit for the year 290,853,671 78,635,392
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Microfinance Institution 290,853,671 78,635,392
Profit for the period 290,853,671 78,635,392
Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic Earnings per share 27.55 7.45

Diluted Earnings per share 27.55 7.45

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.  as per our report of even date

Keshab Raj Paudel Ashutosh Sharma Raj Kumari Chaudhary CA Suraj Timsina

Chairperson Director Director Partner
PD.S. & Associates, Chartered Accountants

Balaram Chaudhary Jagat Jang GC Kamal Singh Rajbanshi  Prof. Dr. Shyam Kishor Mahato ~ Ramdayal Rajbanshi

Director Director Director Independent Director Chief' Executive Officer

Date: 2081/06/15
Place : Duhabi, Sunsari
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Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Profit for the year 290,853,671 78,635,392
Other Comprehensive Income, net of income tax

a) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Gains / (Losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value 928,442 (1,591,666)
Gains / (Losses) on Revaluation - -
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) on defined benefit plans 5,344,968 (41,815,514)
Income tax relating to above items (1,882,023) 13,022,154
Net other Comprehensive Income that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 4,391,387 (30,385,026)

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Gains (Losses) on cash flow hedge - -
Exchange gains (Losses) arising from translating financial assets of foreign
operation

Income tax relating to above items - -
Reclassify to Profit or Loss - -
Net other Comprehensive Income that are or may be reclassified to Profit or

Loss
Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 4,391,387 (30,385,026)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 295,245,058 48,250,366
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.  as per our report of even date
Keshab Raj Paudel Ashutosh Sharma Raj Kumari Chaudhary CA Suraj Timsina

Chairperson Director Director Partner
PD.S. & Associates, Chartered Accountants

Balaram Chaudhary Jagat Jang GC Kamal Singh Rajbanshi  Prof. Dr: Shyam Kishor Mahato ~ Ramdayal Rajbanshi
Director Director Director Independent Director Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2081/06/15
Place : Duhabi, Sunsari
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Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Distributable profit or loss
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)
(As per NRB Regulation)

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Net Profit/(loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss 290,853,671 78,635,392
Appropriations:

a. General Reserve (58,170,734) (15,727,078)
b. Foreign Exchange Fluctuation fund - -

c. Capital redemption reserve - -

d. Corporate social responsibility fund (2,908,537) (786,354)
¢. Employees' training fund (6,156,410) -

f. Client Protection Fund (2,908,537) (786,354)
g. Other - -
Profit/(loss) before regulatory adjustment 220,709,453 61,335,606
Regulatory Adjustments:

a. Interest Receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received(+) (151,564,216) (137,583,852)

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts(-)/reversal(+)

c. Short provision for possible losses on investment(-)/reversal(+)

649,909

(1,114,166)

d. Short provision for possible losses on Non-Banking Assets (-
)/reversal(+)

e. Deferred Tax Assets recognized ( -)/reversal(+)

(118,429,944)

(106,911,455)

f. Goodwill recognized (-)/Impairment of Goodwill(+)

g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal(+)

h. Actuarial Loss recognized (-)/reversal(+)

3,741,478

(29,270,860)

i. Write back from restructured loans and advances transferred to

(247,955,091) (9,343,798)
reserve
j- Write back from restructured loans and advances transferred

3,288,914 -

from reserve
k. CSR Expense directed to CSR fund - 1,859,967
Net Profit for the period available for distribution (289,559,498) (221,028,559)
Opening Retained Earning as on Shrawan 1 519,773,764 994,045,534
Adjustment (+/-)
Prior year tax (48,511) 92,085
Distribution:
Bonus shares issued - (211,112,746)
Cash Dividend Paid - (42,222,549)
Total Distributable Profit/(Loss) as on Period end date 230,165,755 519,773,764
Distributable Profit/(Loss) per share 21.81 49.24

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.  as per our report of even date

Ashutosh Sharma Raj Kumari Chaudhary CA Suraj Timsina

Director Director Partner
PD.S. & Associates, Chartered Accountants

Balaram Chaudhary Jagat Jang GC Kamal Singh Rajbanshi  Prof. Dr: Shyam Kishor Mahato Ramdayal Rajbanshi

Director Director Director Independent Director Chief' Executive Officer

Date: 2081/06/15
Place : Duhabi, Sunsari
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Statement of Cash Flows

Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

For the year ended 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Particulars

Ashad 2081

Ashad 2080

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

2.654,437,355

2,750,270,629

Fees and other income received 177,421,871 207,345,406
Dividend received - -
Receipts from other operating activities 1,029,218 695,000
Interest paid (1,662,433,351) (1,833,581,679)
Commission and fees paid (7,566,150) (14,055,410)
Cash payment to employees (448,772,336) (569,654,349)
Other expense paid (68,231,191) (99,139,894)
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities 645,885,416 441,879,703
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - -

Other trading assets - -

Loans and advances to bank and financial institutions - -
Loans and advances to customers (948.,032,318) 421,542,431
Other assets (119,331,817) 7,210,323

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities

Due to Bank and financial institutions

1,011,317,261

(1,587,232,483)

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers 546,935,411 456,337,923
Borrowings (8,333,333) (6,250,000)
Other liabilities (49.,810,001) (112,990,195)
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid 1,078,630,618 (379,502,298)
Income taxes paid (253,606,567) (77,662,244)
Net cash flow from operating activities 825,024,051 (457,164,542)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities

Purchase of property and equipment

(47,408,510)

(15,509,077)

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets

Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

(15,509,077)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipt from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Receipts from issue of subordinated liabilities

Repayment of subordinated liability

Receipts from issue of shares

Dividends paid

Interest paid

(42.222,549)

Other receipt/payment:

Client protection fund and CSR reserve

(6,603,359)

(22,090,856)

Net cash from financing activities

(6,603,359)

(64,313,405)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

771,012,183

(536,987,024)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Shrawan 2080 / 1 Shrawan 2079

508,957,159

1,045,944,183

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at Ashad end 2081/Ashad end 2080

1,279,969,342

508,957,159

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

Ashutosh Sharma
Director

Keshab Raj Paudel
Chairperson

Director

Kamal Singh Rajbanshi  Prof. Dr: Shyam Kishor Mahato
Independent Director

Balaram Chaudhary
Director

Jagat Jang GC

Director Director

Date: 2081/06/15
Place : Duhabi, Sunsari

Raj Kumari Chaudhary

as per our report of even date

CA Suraj Timsina
Partner
PD.S. & Associates, Chartered Accountants

Ramdayal Rajbanshi
Chief' Executive Officer
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Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 81st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Attributable to equity holders of the Microfinance

N Share General E“'.m“?c Regulatory Fair Value | Revaluation . . Other .
Share Capital N Equalisation Retained earning Total equity
premium reserve Fund Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserves
Balance at 1st Shrawan 2079 844,450,988 - 618,161,749 - 113,627,940 - - 994,045,534 | 171,422,269 | 2,741,708,480
fjus 92,085 92,085
Adjusted/Restated balance at 1st Shrawan 2079 844,450,988 - 618,161,749 - 113,627,940 - - 994,137,619 | 171,422,269 | 2,741,800,565
C ive income for the year - -
Profit for the year 78,635,392 - 78,635,392
Other ive income, net of tax -
Gains/(losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value. (1,114,166) - (1,114,166)
Gains/(losses) on revaluation - -
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (29270.860)]  (29,270,860)
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge - -
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign
operation) 3
Total C ive income for the year - - - - - (1,114,166) - - (29.270.860)|  (30,385,026),
Transfer to Reserves during the year 15,727,078 274,880,334 (301,523,918) 10,916,506 ()
Transfer from reserve during the year - -
Expenses from CPF and CSR 1859967 | (19.649.538)]  (17,789,571)
) fons with owners, directly recognised in equity - -
Share Issued - -
Share Based Payments . _
Dividends to equity holders - -
Bonus shares issued 211,112,746 (211,112,746) - -
Cash dividend paid (42.222.549) - (42,222,549)
Other - -
Total contributions by and distributi 211,112,746 - 15,727,078 - 274,880,334 (1,114,166) - (474,363,855)|  (38,003,891)|  (11,761,754)
Balance at 31st Ashad 2080 1,055,563,734 - 633,888,827 - 388,508,274 (1,114,166) - 519,773,764 | 133,418,378 | 2,730,038,811
Balance at 1st Shrawan 2080 1,055,563,734 - 633,888,827 - 388,508,274 (1,114,166)| - 519,773,764 | 133,418,378 | 2,730,038,811
i / (48,511)
Adjusted/Restated balance at 1st Shrawan 2080 1,055,563,734 - 633,888,827 - 388,508,274 (1,114,166)| - 519,725,253 | 133,418,378 | 2,730,038,811
Comprehensive income for the year N R
Profit for the year 290,853,671 - 290,853,671
Other ive income, net of tax - -
Gains/(losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value. -
Gains/(losses) on revaluation B R
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 649,909 3,741,478 4,391,387
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge - -
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign
operation) - B
Total C ive income for the year - - - - - 649,909 - 290,853,671 3,741,478 295,245,058
Transfer to Reserves during the year 58,170,734 269,994,161 (588,093,470)| 259,928,575 (247,955,091),
Transfer from reserve during the year (4.391,387) 7,680,301 R 3,288,914
Other Components. - -
Interest income of CPF 4,350,841 4,350,841
Expenses from CPF and CSR (10,954,200) (10,954,200)|
) fons with owners, directly recognised in equity - -
Share Issued - -
Share Based Payments - -
Dividends to equity holders - -
Bonus shares issued - -
Cash dividend paid R R
Other - -
Total contributions by and distributions - - 58,170,734 - 265,602,774 649,909 - (289,559,498)| 257,066,694 288,641,699
Balance at 31st Ashad 2081 1,055,563,734 - 692,059,562 - 654,111,048 (464,257) - 230,165,755 | 390,485,072 | 3,018,631,999

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.  as per our report of even date

Keshab Raj Paudel Ashutosh Sharma Raj Kumari Chaudhary CA Suraj Timsina
Chairperson Director Director Partner
PD.S. & Associates, Chartered Accountants

Balaram Chaudhary Jagat Jang GC Kamal Singh Rajbanshi  Prof. Dr: Shyam Kishor Mahato ~ Ramdayal Rajbanshi
Director Director Director Independent Director Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2081/06/15
Place : Duhabi, Sunsari
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Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashad 2081

Note No. 4.1
Cash and cash equivalents

(Figures in NPR)

Particulars Ashad 2081

Ashad 2080

Cash in hand 13,985,607
Balance with B/Fis 1,265,983,734
Money at call and short notice -

Other _

6,635,042
502,322,116

Total 1,279,969,342

508,957,159

Note No. 4.2
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars Ashad 2081

Ashad 2080

Statutory Balances with NRB -
Statutory Balances with NRB BFIs 98,000,000
Securities Purchased under re-sale agreement -
Other deposit and receivable from NRB -

98,000,000

Total 98,000,000

98,000,000

Note No. 4.3
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

Particulars Ashad 2081

Ashad 2080

Placements with domestic B/Fis -
Less: Allowances for Impairment -

Total -

Note No. 4.4
Derivative Financial Instruments

Particulars Ashad 2081

Ashad 2080

Held for trading

Interest rate swap -
Currency swap -
Forward exchange contract -
Others -
Held for risk management

Interest rate swap -
Currency swap -
Forward exchange contract -
Others -

Total -

931 aifitfes ufcrdes—20tTo/ca W
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Note No. 4.5
Other Trading Assets

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Treasury Bills -

Government Bonds -

NRB Bonds -

Domestic Corporate Bonds -

Equities -

Other -

Total - -

Note No. 4.6
Loans and advances to MFIs and Cooperatives

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Loans to microfinance institutions

Loans to Fis

Loans to Cooperatives

Less: Allowance for impairment

Other

Less: Allowance for impairment

Total - -

Note 4.6.1.
Allowance for impairment

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Balance for 1% Shrawan

Impairment loss for the year

Charge for the year

Recoveries/reversal

Amount written off

Balance at Asar end

Note No. 4.7
Loans and advances to customers

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Loans and advances measured at amortized cost 21,566,274,826 20,378,001,492
Less: Impairment allowances (1,680,507,236) (1,282,893,606)
Collective Allowances (206,131,365) (230,880,053)
Individual Allowances (1,474,375,871) (1,052,013,553)
Net amount 19,885,767,590 19,095,107,886
Loans and advances measured at FVTPL

Total 19,885,767,590 19,095,107,886
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Note No. 4.7.1
Analysis of Loans and advances- By Product

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Product

Term Loans

Short term, Term loan

Long term. Term loan

Hire purchase loan

Personal Residential Loans

Immovable assets

4,173,077,091

Staff loans 25,541,195 17,247,686
Others 20,909,255,140 19,969,853,435
Sub Total 20,934,796,334 19,987,101,121
Interest receivable 631,478,492 390,900,371
Grand Total 21,566,274,826 20,378,001,492

Note No. 4.7.2

Analysis of Loans and advances- By Collateral
Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Secured

4,426,493,475

Government Guarantee
Collateral of Government securities
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt

Group Guarantee 16,736,178,049 15,543,359,960
Personal Guarantee

Other collateral

Subtotal 20,909,255,140 19,969,853,435
Unsecured 25,541,195 17,247,686
Grand Total 20,934,796,334 19,987,101,121

Note No. 4.7.3
Allowances for Impairment

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Specific allowance for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1 1,052,013,553 480,636,058
Impairment loss for the year

Charge for the year 422,362,318 571,377,495
Recoveries/reversal during the year

Write-offs

Other Movement

Balance at Asadh end 1,474,375,871 1,052,013,553
Collective allowance for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1 230,880,053 262,124,748
Impairment loss for the year

Charge/(reversal) for the year (24,748,688) (31,244,695)
Other movement

Balance at Asadh end 206,131,365 230,880,053
Total Allowance for impairment 1,680,507,236 1,282,893,606
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Note No. 4.7.3.A
Impairment allowances

Impairment charge on loans and advances has been calculated using the Incurred loss model
as prescribed by NAS 39 Financial Instruments. However, non-optional carve-outs has been
applied as per the decision by The ASB Nepal (Applicable till FY 2080/81) for impairment
of loans and advances which states that impairment shall be measured at higher of provision
determined as per norms as prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank AND impairment provision as
per NAS 39 which is disclosed below:
Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Provision as per NRB Directives:
Good 206,131,365 230,880,053
Watchlist 75,755,807 5,336,543
Restructured 105,663,105 62,657,624
Substandard 86,272,965 26,794,737
Doubtful 91,591,467 80,608,866
Loss 896,346,503 582,917,667
Additional 218,746,024 293,698,117
Total 1,680,507,236 1,282,893,606
Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Impairment as per Incurred loss model (NAS 39):
Impairment on loans and advances to customers 179,033,797 86,917,202
Total 179,033,797 86,917,202

Note No. 4.8

Investment securities
Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Investment securities measured at amortized cost - -
Investment Securities measured at FVTOCI 1,336,775 408,334
Total 1,336,775 408,334

Note No. 4.8.1
Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Debt securities

Government bonds

Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments

Other

Less: specific allowances for impairment

Total - 4
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Note No. 4.8.2
Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Equity instrument

Quoted equity instrument

Unquoted equity instrument 1,336,775 408,334
Total 1,336,775 408,334

Note No 4.8.3
Information relating to investment in equities

Particul As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh 2080
artiewiars Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Investment in Quoted Equity - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Equity
Nepal Finsoft Company Software Investment
20000 shares of Rs 100 each 2,000,000 1,336,775 2,000,000 408,334
Total 2,000,000 1,336,775 2,000,000 408,334
Note No. 4.9
Current tax assets
Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Current tax assets
Current year income tax assets 224,180,855 107,357,866
Tax assets of prior periods - -
Sub-Total 224,180,855 107,357,866
Current tax Liabilities
Current year income tax liabilities 245,611,879 127,652,867
Tax Liabilities of prior periods -
Sub-Total 245,611,879 127,652,867
Total (21,431,024) (20,295,001)
Note No 4.10
Investment Properties
Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080

Investment Properties measured at fair value
Balance as on Shrawan 1
Addition/Disposal during the year

Net changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/Transfer

Net Amount

Investment Properties measured at cost
Balance as on Shrawan 1
Addition/Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Transfer

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated impairment loss

Net Amount

Total
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Note: 4.12

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Software Total Total Total
Particulars Goodwill Other As at 31st As at 31st As at 1st
Purchased | Developed Ashadh 2081 Ashadh 2080  Shrawan 2079

Cost
Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2079 10,062,170 10,062,170
Addition during the Year -

Acquisition 265,000 265,000

Capitalization -
Disposal during the year -
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2080 10,327,170 10,327,170
Addition during the Year -

Acquisition 2,161,687

Capitalization -
Disposal during the year -
Adjustment/Revaluation -
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2081 12,488,857 12,488,857
Ammortization and Impairment
Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2079 7,571,081 7,571,081
Amortization charge for the Year 634,957 634,957
Imapirment for the year -
Disposals -
Adjustment -
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2080 8,206,038 8,206,038
Ammortization charge for the Year 751,359 751,359
Imapirment for the year
Disposals
Adjustment
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2081 8,957,397 8,957,397
Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value as on 31st Ashadh 2079 - 2,491,089
Net Book Value as on 32nd Ashadh 2080 2,121,132 2,121,132
Net Book Value as on 31st Ashadh 2081 3,531,460 3,531,460
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Note: 4.13

Deferred Tax
Current Year
Net Deferred
Particulars Deferred Tax Assets Def'err'e d .Tax Tax Assets/
Liabilities P
(Liabilities)
Deferred Tax on Temporary differences on following item s
Loans and Advances to B/Fis -
Loans and Advances to customers -
Investment Properties -
Investment Securities 198,967 198,967
Property and equipment 13,881,242 (13,881,242)
Intangible assets 173,003 (173,003)
Employees' defined benefit plan 25,939,126 25,939,126
Liability for long service leave 15,186,469 15,186,469
Lease liabilities 9,613,771 9,613,771
Provisions 1,208,786 1,208,786
Impairment provisions 190,513,344 190,513,344
Other temporary differences - -
Deferred Tax o n Temporary differences 242,660,464 14,054,246 228,606,218
Deferred Tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of 2080 -81 228,606,218
Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on shrawan 1, 2080 110,176,274
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 118,429,944
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss (120,311,967)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income 1,882,023
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized directly in equity -
Previous Year
Net Deferred Tax
Particulars Deferred Tax Assets Def.err.e d .Tax Assets/
Liabilities e
(Liabilities)
Deferred Tax on Temporary differences on following items
Loans and Advances to B/Fis
Loans and Advances to customers
Investment Properties -
Investment Securities 477,500 477,500
Property and equipment 20,411,092 (20,411,092)
Intangible assets 173,003 (173,003)
Employees' defined benefit plan 22,794,398 22,794,398
Liability for long service leave 13,521,338 13,521,338
Lease liabilities 7,458,209 7,458,209
Provisions 1,208,786 1,208,786
Impairment provisions 85,300,139 85,300,139
Other temporary differences - -
Deferred Tax on Tempora ry differences 110,176,274
Deferred Tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of 2079 -80 110,176,274
Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on shrawanl, 2079 3,264,818
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 106,911,455
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss (93,889,301)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income (13,022,154)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized directly in equity 9
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Note No. : 4.14
Other Assets

Particulars

Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080

Assets held for sale

Other Non-Banking Assets

Bills Receivable

Accounts receivable

Accrued income

Prepayments and deposits
Income tax deposit

Deferred Employee Expenditure
Stationery stock

Staff Advances

Others:

Restricted balance-Client Protection Fund
Other

5,030,705 5,736,224
23,984 -
3,944,497 3,501,778

288,834 2,297,041
12,672,932 14,470,281
3,065,758 2,407,432

122,717,863 -
122,670,435 -
47,429 .

Total

147,744,574 28,412,757

Note : 4.15

Due to Bank and financial institution

Particulars

Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080

Borrowing from BFIs
Settlement and clearing accounts
Other

9,487,458,504 8,476,141,243

Total

9,487,458,504 8,476,141,243

Note : 4.16
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars

Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080

Refinance from NRB

Standing liquidity facility

Lender of last resort facility from NRB
Securities sold under repurchase agreement
Other payable to NRB

Total

Note : 4.17
Derivative financial instruments

Particulars

Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080

Held for trading

Interest rate swap

Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap

Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Total
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Note : 4.18
Deposits from Customers

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Institutions Customers:

Term Deposits - -

Call Deposits - -

Other - -
Subtotal: - -
Individual Customers:

Term Deposits - -
Saving Deposits - -
Saving from members 8,962,196,358 8,415,260,947

Other - -
Subtotal: 8,962,196,358 8,415,260,947
Total 8,962,196,358 8,415,260,947
Note : 4.19
Borrowing
Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080

Domestic Borrowing:

Nepal Government - -
Other licensed institution - -
Other 10,416,667 18,750,000

Yuwa tatha sana byawasai borrowings 10,416,667 18,750,000
Other Assets

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - -
Multilateral Development Bank - -
Other institutions - -

Sub total - -
Total 10,416,667 18,750,000
Note : 4.20
Provisions
Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080

Provisions for redundancy - -
Provision for restructuring - -
Pending legal issues and tax litigation - -
Onerous contract - -
Provision for service charge refund - 87,705,458

Total - 87,705,458
Note : 4.20.1
Movement in provision

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080

Balance at shrawan 1%

Provisions made during the year

Provisions used during the year

Provisions reversed during the year

Unwind of discount

Balance at Ashadh End = =
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Note : 4.21

Other liabilities
Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations 86,463,753 75,981,327
Liability for long-service leave 50,621,564 45,071,125
Short-term employee benefits 3,111,906 3,656,922
Bills payable - -
Creditors and Accruals 75,822,858 98,894,189
Interest payable on deposit - -
Interest payable on borrowing 19,281,267 4,128,746
Liabilities on deferred grant income - -
Unpaid Dividend 4,489,254 4,559,790
Liabilities under finance lease - -
Employee bonus payable 8,417,909 11,165,645
Others 110,625,597 59,206,934
i)Micro protection fund 17,202,978 17,202,978
ii)TDS payable 9,885,686 12,171,348
iii)Provision for receivable & Other Assets 4,029,288 4,029,288
iv) Lease Liability 32,045,905 24,860,696
v)Staff welfare fund 942,624 942,624
vi)Advance for settlement of insurance claim 1,445,000 -
vii)Service charge refund payable 45,074,116 -
Total 358,834,109 302,664,678

Note : 4.21.1
Defined benefit obligaation

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Present value of unfunded obligations 86,463,753 75,981,327
Total present value of obligations 86,463,753 75,981,327
Fair value of plan assets - -

Present value of net obligations 86,463,753 75,981,327
Recognized liability for defined benefit obligation 86,463,753 75,981,327

Note : 4.21.1. A
Plan Assets

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Equity securities - -
Government bonds - -
Bank deposits - -
Other - -
Total - -

Note : 4.21.1. B
Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Defined benefit obligation at shrawan 1% 75,981,327 22,876,845
Actuarial losses/(gains) (5,344,968) 41,815,514
Benefit paid by the plan (1,210,679) (891,957)

Current service cost and interest 17,038,073 12,180,925
Defined benefit obligation at Ashadh end 86,463,753 75,981,327
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Note : 4.21.1. C
Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Fair value of plan assets at shrawan 1 - -
Contributions paid into the plan - -
Benefit paid during the year - -
Actuarial (losses) gains - -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Fair value of plan assets at Ashadh end - -

Note : 4.21.1. D
Amount recognised in profit or loss

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Current service cost 10,648,909 10,274,301
Interest on obligation 6,389,164 1,906,624
Expected return on plan assets - -
Total 17,038,073 12,180,925

Note : 4.21.1. E
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Actuarial (gain)/loss (5,344,968) 41,815,514
Total (5,344,968) 41,815,514

Note : 4.21.1. F
Actuarial assumptions

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Discount rate 8.50% 8.50%
Expected return on plan assets
Future salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Withdrawal rate 3.00% 3.00%
Note : 4.21.2
Liability for long-service leave
Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Present value of funded obligations 50,621,564 45,071,125
Total present value of obligations 50,621,564 45,071,125
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of net obligations 50,621,564 45,071,125
Recognized liability for defined benefit obligation 50,621,564 45,071,125

Note : 4.21.2. A
Plan Assets

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Equity securities - "
Government bonds - -
Bank deposits o -
Other - X
Total o =
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Note : 4.21.2. B
Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Defined benefit obligation at Shrawan 1% 45,071,125 35,831,271
Actuarial losses/(gain) 1,815,744 5,046,326
Benefit paid by the plan (4,427,346) (2,894,248)
Current service cost and interest 8,162,041 7,087,776
Defined benefit obligation at Ashadh end 50,621,564 45,071,125

Note : 4.21.2. C
Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Fair value of plan assets at shrawan 1% - -
Contributions paid into the plan - -
Benefit paid during the year - -
Actuarial (losses) gains - -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Fair value of plan assets at Ashadh end - -

Note : 4.21.2. D
Amount recognised in profit or loss

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Current service cost 4,519,158 4,165,123
Interest on obligation 3,642,883 2,922,653
Actuarial (gain)/loss 1,815,744 5,046,326
Expected return on plan assets

Total 9,977,785 12,134,102

Note : 4.21.2. E
Actuarial assumptions

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Discount rate 8.50% 8.50%
Expected return on plan assets - -
Future salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Withdrawal rate 3.00% 3.00%

Note : 4.22

Debt securities issued

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Debt securities issued designated at fair value through profit or loss -

Debt securities issued at amortized cost -
Total - -

Note : 4.23

Subordinated liabilities

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Redeemable preference shares -

Irredeemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities component) -

Other

Total - ~
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Note:4.24
Share capital

Particulars

Ashad 2081

Ashad 2080

Ordinary shares

Convertible preference share (Equity component)
Irredeemable preference share (Equity component)
Perpetual debt (Equity component only)

1,055,563,734

1,055,563,734

Total 1,055,563,734 1,055,563,734
Note : 4.24.1
Ordinary shares

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080

Authorized capital:

Ordinary share of Rs.100 each
Issued capital:

Ordinary share of Rs.100 each
Subscribed and paid of capital:
Ordinary share of Rs.100 each

1,750,000,000
1,055,563,734

1,055,563,734

1,750,000,000
1,055,563,734

1,055,563,734

Total

1,055,563,734

1,055,563,734

Note : 4.24.2
Ordinary share ownership

As at 31st Ashadh 2081

As at 31st Ashadh 2080

Particulars Percent Amount Percent Amount

Domestic ownership (promoter) 100.00% 1,055,563,734 100.00% 1,055,563,734
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institutions 26.99% 284,896,652 25.00% 263,890,933
Other licensed institutions 0.49% 5,169,500 7.50% 79,166,442
Other institutions 29.35% 309,825,200 25.00% 263,890,933
Other 13.17% 139,002,423 12.50% 131,945,467

Domestic ownership (public)

Nepal Government

"A" class licensed institution

Other licensed institutions

Other institutions

Other 30.00% 316,669,959 30.00% 316,669,959

Foreign ownership Promoter

Foreign ownership public

Total 100.00% 1,055,563,734 100.00% 1,055,563,734
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Note : 4.25

Reserves
Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Statutory General Reserve 692,059,562 633,888,827

Capital reserve
Exchange equalization reserve
Investment adjustment reserve

Corporate social responsibility reserve 27,938,207 26,960,843

Client protection Fund 124,529,802 126,293,451
Capital redemption reserve

Regulatory reserve 654,111,048 388,508,274
Assets revaluation reserve

Fair value reserve (464,257) (1,114,166)

Dividend equalization reserve

Actuarial reserve (27,209,123) (30,950,600)

Special reserve
Debenture redemption reserve

Other reserve 261,937,271 11,114,684
Employee training fund 7,927,296 1,770,885
Restructured loan write back reserve 254,009,975 9,343,798
Total 1,732,902,510 1,154,701,313

Note No. 4.26
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Contingent Liabilities 35,422,156 1,334,828
Provision for staff bonus-restructured loan write back 35,422,156 1,334,828
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 207,126,908 340,725,220

Capital commitment - -
Lease commitment - -
Litigation - -
Others - -
Total 242,549,063 342,060,048

Note No. 4.26.1
Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the institution but provision has
not been made in financial statements

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub Total

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub Total = -

Total - -
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Note No. 4.26.2
Lease Commitments

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating lease, where the bank is lessee
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Sub Total - -
Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating lease, where the bank is lessee
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Sub Total - -

Grand Total - _

Note No. 4.26.3
Litigation

There are no any pending litigations against Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya
Sanstha Limited as on Ashad end 2081.

Note : 4.27
Interest income

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Cash and cash equivalents 9,469,926 19,353,419
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions - -
Loans and Advances to Financial Institutions - -

Loans and advances to customers 2,882,342,324 2,944,198,894
Investment securities - -

Loans and advances to staff 3,203,225 1,939,245
Other - -

Total interest income 2,895,015,476 2,965,491,558

Note : 4.28
Interest expense

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 963,415,900 1,198,989,709
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Deposits from customers 708,391,305 633,624,974
Borrowing 726,583 966,996

Debt securities issued - -
Subordinated liabilities - -

Lease liability 5,052,085 4,834,936
Total interest expense 1,677,585,872 1,838,416,615
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Note : 4.29
Fees and Commission Income

Particulars

Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080

Loan Administration fees

Service fees

Commitment fees

Card Issuance fees

prepayment and swap fees
Remittance fees

Brokerage fees

Other Fees and Commission Income
Commission from Insurance

166,284,120 112,062,089

526,012 780,834

10,611,739 6,995,425
10,611,739 6,995,425

Total Fees and Commission Income

177,421,871 119,838,348

Note : 4.30
Fees and commission expense

Particulars

Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080

Brokerage

ATM management fees

VISA/Master card fees

Guarantee commission fees

DD/TT/Swift fees

Remittance fees and commission

Other Fees and Commission Expense

Credit Administration Charges on Borrowings
CIB Charges on Borrowings

7,566,150 14,055,410
7,538,600 14,034,060
27,550 21,350

Total Fees and Commission Expense

7,566,150 14,055,410

Note : 4.31
Net trading income

Particulars

Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080

Changes in fair value of trading assets
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets
Interest income on trading assets
Dividend income on trading assets
Gain/Loss Foreign Exchange Transaction
Other

Total Net trading income
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Note : 4.32
Other operating income

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Foreign Exchange Revaluation Gain - -
Gain/loss on sale of investment Securities - -
Fair value gain/loss on investment property - -
Dividend on equity instruments - -
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment - 695,000
Gain/loss on sale of investment property - -
Operating lease income - -
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - -
Other 1,029,218 957,706
Total other operating income 1,029,218 1,652,706

Note: 4.33

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses
Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/FIs - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer 397,613,630 540,132,800
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with bank and financial
institutions i )
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment property - -
Total impairment charge/(revers al) for loan and other losses 397,613,630 540,132,800

Note: 4.34

Personnel Expense
Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Salary 220,096,110 222,043,839
Allowances 154,577,119 159,398,434
Gratuity expense 17,038,073 12,180,925
Provident fund 20,136,761 20,131,769
Uniform 5,707,500 6,000,000
Training & Development Expense 6,224,741 11,199,263
Leave encashment 9,977,785 12,134,102
Medical 4,948,000 5,131,000
Insurance 5,085,133 6,316,034
Employees Incentive - -
Cash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension Expense - -
Finance expenses under NFRS 142,500 607,848
Other Expenses Related to Staff 4,838,614 650,873
Staff forced leave expense 3,400,614 650,873
Staff Raincoat expense 1,424,000 8
Staff Calculator expense 14,000 -
Sub-Total 448,772,336 455,794,087
Employees Bonus 8,417,909 11,165,645
Total personnel expenses 457,190,245 466,959,733
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Note: 4.35
Other operating expense
Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Directors' fee 1,240,000 936,000
Directors' expense 594,276 5,092,817
Auditors' remuneration 1,000,000 500,000
Other audit related expense 61,472 50,624
Professional and legal expense 259,900 647,800
Office administration expense 50,195,076 52,557,207
Operating lease expense 13,222,899 5,459,160
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense - 1,859,967
Client Protection expenses - -
Onerous lease provision - -
Local Government business tax 823,150 697,032
Center award expenses - 551,100
Other 834,418 1,102,320
Total other operating expense 68,231,191 69,454,027
Note No 4.85.1
Office administration expense
Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Water and electricity 3,821,070 3,561,102
Repair and maintenance 2,581,969 2,282,883
(a) Building - -
(b) Vehicle 1,242,969 1,331,416
(c) Computer and accessories 810,763 414,634
(d) Office equipment and furniture 409,174 311,573
(e) Other 119,063 225,260
Insurance 1,213,273 2,056,528
Postage, telex, telephone, fax 1,604,043 860,674
Printing and stationery 9,323,323 11,443,368
Newspaper, books and journals 43,629 63,025
Advertisement 194,760 820,707
Donation - -
Security expense 1,003,440 928,102
Deposit and loan guarantee premium - -
Travel allowance and expense 21,771,082 20,424,639
Entertainment - -
Annual/special general meeting expense 230,560 345,732
Other 8,407,926 9,770,448
Bank charge 150,715 1,248,201
Office Accessories 477,121 664,625
Office Cleaning Exp 421,162 450,937
Annual Software Repair Exp 1,343,991 1,390,763
Office Exp 573,186 903,165
Anniversary Exp 390,085 79,790
Internet Expenses 3,029,291 2,589,438
Security Dematerialization fee 220,000 808,146
Nepse Operating account charge 100,000 336,113
RTS Renewal expenses 145,000 145,000
Others 1,557,375 1,154,270
Total 50,195,076 52,557,207
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Note: 4.36
Depreciation & Amortisation

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Depreciation on Property and Equipment 14,411,574 13,703,763
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 24,495,145 27,570,440
Depreciation on investment property - -
Amortization of intangible assets 751,359 634,957
Total depreciation and amortization 39,658,078 41,909,160

Note : 4.37
Non operating income

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Recovery of loan written off 184,259 -
Other income - -
Total non-operating income 184,259 -

Note: 4.38

Non-Operating Expense

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Loan Written Off 521,364 1,342,774

Redundancy provision - -
Expenses of restructuring -

Other expense - 873,000
Employee Exam Expenses - 873,000
Total non-operating Expenses 521,364 2,215,774.00

Note : 4.39
Income tax expense

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Current tax expense 254,742,589 129,093,001
Current year 245,611,879 127,652,867
Adjustment for prior years 9,130,711 1,440,133
Deferred tax expense - (93,889,301)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences - (93,889,301)
Changes in tax rate - -
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses - -
Total income tax expense 254,742,589 35,203,700
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Note : 4.39.1

Reconciliation of tax as per accounting profit and taxable profit

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Profit before tax 425,284,293 113,839,092
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 127,585,288 34,151,727
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 131,628,881 108,340,471
Less: Tax effect of expenses that are deductible for tax purpose (18,055,132) (14,960,622)
Add: Interest on tax 4,452,841 121,291
Add: Prior period tax 9,130,711 1,440,133
Total income tax expense 254,742,589 129,093,001
Effective tax rate 59.90% 113.40%

Note No. 5.1
Events after reporting date

No material adjusting or non-adjusting events have occurred from the date of financial
statements up to the date of signing the report

Note No. 5.2
Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
Fair .
. Value Amortized Fair Value
Particulars through Total
through Cost oCI
PL
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,279,969,342 1,279,969,342
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 98,000,000 98,000,000
Loans and advances to B/FIs -
Loans and advances to customers 19,885,767,590 19,885,767,590
Investment securities (Govt. &Development
Bonds) ) )
Investment securities (Equity) - 1,336,775 1,336,775
Other Financial assets 5,030,705 5,030,705
Total financial Assets 21,268,767,637 1,336,775 21,270,104,412
Financial Liabilities:
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 9,487,458,504 9,487,458,504

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Deposits from customers

8,962,196,358

8,962,196,358

Other Financial Liabilities 75,822,858 75,822,858
Debt securities issued - -
Total financial Liabilities 18,525,477,720 - 18,525,477,720
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Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Capital Adequacy Ratios
As on 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Core Capital

(Rs. In '000)

» [»

Period

Description

Ashad 2081

Ashad 2080

Paid up Equity Share Capital

1,055,564

1,055,564

Proposed bonus share

Share premium

Irredeemable preference share

General Reserve Fund

692,060

633,889

Retained earnings

230,166

519,774

Profit & loss a/c as per balance-sheet

R0 [I[ NN | B[ W —

Capital Redemption Reserve Fund

Ne)

Capital Adjustment Fund

—_
(=)

Calls in advance

11

Other Free Reserves

Deductions:

Goodwill

Deferred tax assets

Investment on shares and securities in excess of limits

Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

a6 |o|o| e

Fictitious Asset

[¢)

Investment on land and building for self-use not complying
the Directives of NRB

60,216

60,216

Investment on land development and housing construction in
excess of limits

Loans and facilities to related parties and restricted lending

e | =

otal Core Capital (A)

1,917,573

2,149,010

Supplementary capital

General Loan Loss Provision

377,611

298,874

Additional Loan Loss provision

51,649

Hybrid capital instruments

Subordinated Term Debt

Exchange Equalization Reserve

Assets revaluation reserve

Qa|n| W~

Investment adjustment reserve

Total Supplementary Capital (B)

377,611

350,523

C. | Total Capital Fund (A+B)

| 2,295,183 | 2,499,533 |

Minimum capital Fund to be maintained based on Risk

D Weighted Assets:

1 Minimum Capital Fund Required (8.0 % of RWA) 1,830,839 1,699,504
2 | Minimum Core Capital Required (4.0 % of RWA) 915,420 849,752
3 Capital Fund maintained (in %) 10.03% 11.77%
4 Core Capital maintained (in %) 8.38% 10.12%
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Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Comparision between Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31st Ashadh 2081

) . " As per Unaudited As per Audited Variance .
of Financial Position Financial Statement Financial Statement Amount A Reasons for Variance

Assets)
Cash and Cash Equivalent 1.289.157.332 1,279.969,342 (9.187.990) -0.71% |Reconciliation of banks
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 98,000,000 98,000,000 - 0.00%)
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - 0.00%
Derivative Financials Instrument - - - 0.00%
Other Trading Assets - - - 0.00%
Loans and Advances to MFIs and Cooperatives - - 0.00%
Loans and Advances to Customers 19,897.259.820 19.885.767.590 | (11.492.230) -0.06% |Amortization of employee loans, additional provisions
Investment Securities 408,334 1.336.775 028,442 | 227.37%|Fair valuation of investment securities at FVTOCI
Current Tax Assets - - - 0.00%)
Investment Property - - - 0.00%
Property and Equipment 212,395,149 214,012,701 1,617,552 0.76% |Changes in depreciation of right-of-use assets as per NFRS
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4,282,819 3.531,460 (751.359) | -17.54%|Changes in amortization of software as per NFRS
Deferred Tax Assets 223,580,213 228,606,218 5,026,005 2.25%|Changes in deductible and taxable temporary differences
Other Assets 146,900,234 147,744,574 844,340 0.57%|R iation of p benefit
Total Assets 21,871,983,901 21,858,968,660 | (13,015241) [  -0.06%| C ial effect of above items.
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 9.486,983,159 0.487.458,504 475,345 0.01%]|R iation of borrowings
Duc to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - 0.00% -
Derivative Financials Instrument - - - 0.00%) -
Deposits from Customers 8.962,018,015 8.962,196.358 178.343.00 0.00% | Adjustment of write off of loans and advances to customers
Borrowings 12,500,000 10,416,667 (2.083.333) [ -16.67%|Reconciliation of yuwa swarojgar borrowings
Current Tax Liabilities 23.887.409 21,431,024 (2,456,384) [ -10.28% |Changes in taxable profit
Provisions 17,185.285 - (17.185,285) | -100.00% on to Other lia
Deferred Tax Liabilitics. - - 0.00% -
Other Liabilities 319,241,442 358,834,109 39,592,667 12.40% | Reclassification and refunds
Debt Securities Issued - - - 0.00% -
Subordinated Liabilities - - - 0.00% -
Total Liabilities 18,821,815,309 18,840,336,662 18,521,352 0.10% | Consequential effect of above items.
Equity
Share Capital 1.055.563.734 1.055.563.734 - 0.00%
Share Premium - - 0.00%
Retained Earnings 266,503,573 230,165,755 | (36,337.818) | -13.64%|Changes in profit and related reserve transfers
Reserves 1,728.101.285 1,732,902,510 4,801,225 0.28% |Changes in profit and related reserve transfers
Total Equity Attributable to Equity Shareholders 3,050,168,592 3,018,631,999 | (31,536,593) | -1.03%

tal Equity and Liabi 21,871,983,901 21,858,968.660 | (13,015,241) | -0.06% | Consequential effect of above items.

As per Unaudited As per Audited Variance Reasons for Variance
Statement of Profit and Loss ancial Statement Financial Statement Amount A
Interest Income 2.894,437.136 2.895.015.476 578,340 0.02%| Staff loan interest income as per NFRS
Interest Expenses 1,677,138.778 1,677.585.872 447,094 0.03%| Lease liabilities interest expense as per NFRS|
Net Interest Income 1,217,298,358 1,217,429,603 131,246 0.01%
Reconciliation of remittance, charges and insurance

Fee and C Income 203,163,397 177.421.871 | (25.741.526) | -12.67% issi
Fee and Commission Expenses 7.516,150 7.566.150 50,000 0.67%| Reconciliation of Banks
Net Fee and Commission Income 195,647,247 184,988,021 | (10,659.226) | -5.45% -
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 1,412,945,605 1,402,417,625 | (10.527.980) [ -0.75% -
Net Trading Income - - 0.00% -
Other Operating Income 1,031,907 1,029,218 (2.689) -0.26% -
Total Operating Income 1,413,977,512 1,403,446,843 | (10,530,669) | -0.74% -
Tmpairment Charge/(reversal) for loans and other
losses 385,984,396 397,613,630 11,629,234 3.01%| Additional provision as per NRB
Net Operating Income 1,027,993,116 1,005,833,213 | (22,159,903) |  -2.16% -
Operating Expenses
Personnel Expenses 461,359,082 457,190,245 (4,168.,836) -0.90% | Staff bonus and staff loan
Other Operating Expenses 56,905,828 68,231,191 11,325,363 19.90%| Reclassification of expenses
Depreciation & Amortization 46.194.249 39.658.078 (6.536,171) | -14.15%| Recalculation of depreciation as per NFRS
Operating Profit 463,533,957 425,621,398 | (37.912,559)| -8.18% -
Non Operating Income 184,259 184,259 - 0.00% -
Non Operating Expenses 521,364 521,364 - 0.00% -
Profit before Income Tax 463,196,852 425,284,293 | (37.912,559)| -8.18% -
Income Tax Expenses 141,799,474 134,430.622 (7.368.852) -5.20% -
Current Tax 256,806,903 254,742,589 (2.064,314) -0.80%| Due to change in profit
Deferred Tax (income)/expense (115,007.429) (120,311,967)| _ (5.304.538) 4.61%]| Changes in temporary differences
Profit for the Period 321,397,379 290,853,671 (30,543,707) -9.50%| Consequential effect of above items.
C i of Comp i As per Unaudited As per Audited Variance Reasonfie A to
Income Financial Statement Financial Statement Amount A
Profit/(Loss) for the period 321,397.379 290,853,671 | (30,543,707) -9.50%| Consequential effect of above items.
Other Comprehensive Income 3,741,478 4,391,387 649,909 17.37% [Fair valuation of investment securities at EVTOCI
Total Comprehensive Income 325,138,856 295,245,058 | (29.893,798) | -9.19%| Consequential effect of above items.
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Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Principal Indicators
For the Year ended 31st Ashadh 2081
As per Restated as per
S.N Particulars Indicator |previous GAAP NFRS As per NFRS
FY 2076-77 FY 2077-78 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2080-81
1 [ Net Profit / Total Income % 10.27% 17.60% 18.95% 2.55%] 9.47%|
2 | Earning Per Share Rs. 32.72 70.45 73.67 745 21.55
3 | Market Price Per Share Rs. 1,599.00 2,770.00 2,385.00 1,321.00 1,413.00
4 | Price / Earning Ratio Times 48.87 39.32 32.37 177.32 51.28
5 | Bonus share dividend % 31.58% 35.00% 25.00%)| 0.00%] 13.30%
6| Cash dividend % 6.58%) 7.00%) 5.00%) 0.00%] 0.70%|
7| Interest Income / Loans and Advances % 15.65%] 13.82%)| 14.89%)| 14.74%| 13.79%|
8| Employee Expenses / Total Operating Expenses | % 75.17% 83.85% 85.15%] 80.74%) 80.91%
9 | Interest Expenses / Total deposit and borrowing | % 9.02% 6.49% 8.45% 10.87%| 9.06%|
10| Staff Bonus / Total Employee Expenses % 9.38% 17.77%)| 20.39%) 2.39% 1.84%
11 [ Net Profit / Loans and Advances % 1.76% 2.81% 3.14% 0.41%| 1.39%]
12 [ Net Profit / Total Assets % 1.56%] 2.48%) 2.93% 0.39%] 1.33%]
13| Total Loans and Advances / Total Deposit % 213.56%| 236.13%| 249.28%| 226.91%| 233.31%
14 | Total Operating Expenses / Total Assets % 3.38% 2.76% 3.05% 2.88% 2.59%
15| Capital Adequacy Ratio
a) Core Capital % 9.92%| 11.10% 11.56% 10.12%| 8.38%
b) Supplementary Capital % 1.80% 1.33% 1.27% 1.65%] 1.65%]
¢) Total Capital Fund % 11.72% 12.43% 12.84% 11.77% 10.03%)
16 | Cash Reserve ratio (CRR) % 1.09% 0.95% 0.52% 0.55%] 0.56%|
17| NPL/ Total Loans and Advances % 2.85%| 4.75% 1.83% 4.26% 6.81%)
18 | Cost of Fund % - - - 10.27% 9.67%|
19 | Base rate % - - - 15.41% 12.68%)
20 | Interest rate spread % - - - 4.72%) 5.31%
21| Book Net Worth (Rs. In Lakh) Rs. 14,346 21,802 27417 27,300 30,186
22| Total Shares Number 6255193 6255193 844451( 10555637 10555637
23 | Total Employees Number 795 758 808 768 724
Details of Shareholders holding 0.5% or more shares
Name of Shareholder Number of Holding % Amount
Share
Everest Bank Limited 2,638,879 25.00% 263,887,859
Forum For Rural Woman Ardency Development 2,500,879 23.69% 250,087,859
Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited 337,500 3.20% 33,750,000
Bhagbati Chaudhary 302,631 2.87% 30,263,134
Rastriya Banijya Bank Limited 209,688 1.99% 20,968,750
Ash Narayan Chaudhary 128,130 1.21% 12,813,028
Asian Life Insurance Company Limited 84,375 0.80% 8,437,500
Surya Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited 84,375 0.80% 8,437,500
Laxmi Krishna Shrestha 67,236 0.64% 6,723,573
Shanti Basnet Adhikari 55,177 0.52% 5,517,650
Lalita Kumari Chaudhary 52,777 0.50% 5,277,650
Satya Narayan Chaudhary 52,777 0.50% 5,277,650
Total 651,442,153
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FORWARD MICROFINANCE LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Reporting Entity

1.1 Corporate Information

Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (herein after referred to as “Forward
MFT")is a public limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 2063 and licensed by
Nepal Rastra Bank to conduct banking transaction as a “D” Class Financial Institution under
the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073. Forward MFT has its registered head Office
at Duhabi-2, Sunsari, Nepal. Forward MFT received the license to commence microfinance
operations on Chaitra 06, 2069 BS (March 18, 2013 AD).

The Authorized Capital of Forward MFI is Rupees 1,750,000,000/- and the issued and
paid-up capital is Rupees 1,055,563,734/-. Seventy percent of the paid-up Capital is
held by the promoters and the remaining thirty percent is held by the general public.
The shares of Forward MFT are listed at Nepal Stock Exchange Limited (NEPSE) with
trading Code “FOWAD”.

1.2 Principal activities of Forward MFI
The objective of Forward MFT is to increase financial access to the poor households
particularly the women of the poor families living in rural and remote areas of Nepal.

2 Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) Accounting Standards developed by the Accounting Standards Board
(ASB) of Nepal, pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN)
and as per the directives no. 4 of Unified Directives, 2079 issued by Nepal Rastra Bank
(NRB). Certain carve-outs have been applied in preparation of these financial statements.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going-concern basis, as management
is satisfied that Forward MFT has adequate resources to continue as a going concern for
the foreseeable future.

These financial statements consist Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit
or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in
Equity and Statements of Cash Flows along with the necessary and related notes as per
prescribed by Directive no. 4.

Forward MFT presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of" liquidity.
An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within twelve months after the reporting
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date (current) and more than twelve months after the reporting date (non-current) is
presented in the respective notes.

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements

Forward MFT follows the Nepalese financial year based on Nepali calender starting from
1st Shrawan 2080 to 31st Ashad 2081 (17th July 2023 to 15th July 2024).

The Financial Statements have been approved and authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors at its meeting no. 153 held on 2081/06/15.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) (rounded to the nearest
Rupee unless otherwise stated), which is Forward MFT’s functional currency, the currency
of the primary economic environment in which microfinance operates.

2.4 Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of microfinance’s accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual results may vary
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
estimates are recognized prospectively.

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the
tollowing notes:

* Incurred loss model for impairment as per NAS 39; Selection and approval of models
used to calculate probability of default and loss given default.

e Classification of financial assets; conducting business model and cash flow
characteristics test.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that

have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year is included in the following notes:

* measurementof thefair value of unlisted financial assets with significant unobservable
inputs.

* measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions

* recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which
deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilized
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2.5 Changes in Accounting Policies

Forward MFT has consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods presented
in these financial statements except for new or revised statements and interpretations
implemented during the fiscal year. The nature and effect of new standards and
interpretations are disclosed in note that follows.

2.6 New standards issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations
have been issued by International Accounting Standard Board (IASB). Those become
applicable in Nepal when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS. Forward MFI
intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become eftective.

2.7 New Standards and interpretation not adopted

All Nepal Accounting Standards and Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, with carve-
outs, and other interpretation issued by ASB Nepal have been adopted while preparing
financial statements.

2.8 Discounting
Non- current assets and liabilities are discounted where discounting is material.

3 Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied by Forward MFT in the preparation of these
financial statements are presented below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented unless stated otherwise.

3.1 Basis of Measurement
The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:

|Table 1; Basis of Measurementl

S.N. | Items Basis of measurement

| Liability for employees defined benefit Projected unit credit method using
obligations Actuarial Valuation.

2 Liability for long service leave Actuarial valuation.

Present value of the lease payments

2 iy over the lease term.

Investment securities at fair value through

. Net assets value method.
Other comprehensive income
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Classification and Measurement

i

Financial Assets

Forward MFT classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or
fair value on the basis of Forward MFT’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The two classes of
financial assets are as follows:

1.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Forward MFI classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

a)

b)

2.

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
These are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
(‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any.

Financial asset measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value.
Financial assets measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as below:

a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) it they
are held for trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition. Transaction costs are directly attributable to the acquisition are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair
value and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial
recognition, Forward MFI makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes
in fair value of the instrument is to be recognized in other comprehensive income
are classified as financial assets at fair value though other comprehensive income.
Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

931 aifitfes ufcrdes—20tTo/ca w



555 FORWARD 5o
, Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
et

ii. Financial Liabilities
Forward MFT classifies the financial liabilities as follows:

a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if
they are held for trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon
initial recognition, transaction costs are directly attributable to the acquisition are
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair
value are recognized at profit or loss.

b) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are
classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

De-recognition

i. De-recognition of financial assets

Forward MFT derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
trom the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction
in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transtferred or in which Forward MFT neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.
Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is
created or retained by Forward MFT is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On de-
recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset,
and the sum of

a. The consideration received and
b. Any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income
is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Forward MFT enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its
Statement of Financial Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If" all or substantially all risks
and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized. Transfers of
assets with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards include, for example
repurchase transactions.
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ii. De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The diftference between the
carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized
in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Determination of fair value

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
(exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Group
has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.
When available, Forward MFI measures the fair value of an instrument using the
quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if
transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. If there is no quoted price in an active
market, then Forward MFT uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation
technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account
In pricing a transaction.

Forward MFT follows three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy are described below:
Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;

Level 2: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly
observable or valuations of quoted for similar instrument in active markets or quoted
prices for identical or similar instrument in inactive markets; and

Level 8: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable.

Impairment

At each reporting date, Forward MFT assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates
that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s), and that the loss
event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.
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Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial
difficulty of" the borrower or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring
of aloan or advance by Forward MFI on terms that Forward MFI would not otherwise
consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance
of an active market for a security, or other observable data relating to a group of assets
such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group,
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the group. In addition, for an
investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below
its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost

Forward MFTI considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and investment
securities measured at amortized cost at both specific asset and collective level. Forward
MFT first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant and that are not individually significant
are assessed on collectively.

If there is objective evidence on that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difterence between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

All individually significant loans and advances; and investment securities measured at
amortized cost found not to be specifically impaired and those that are not individually
significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and
advances with similar risk characteristics.

All individually significant loans and advances and investment securities are assessed
tor specific impairment. Those found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively
assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Loans and
advances and held-to-maturity investment securities that are not individually significant
are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances and
held-to-maturity investment securities with similar risk characteristics.
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Impairment of loans and advances portfolios are based on the judgments in past
experience of portfolio behavior. In assessing collective impairment, Forward MFT uses
historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount
of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether current economic
and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than
suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future
recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain
appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortized cost are calculated as the diftference
between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.

Loans together with the associated allowance are written oft when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred
to Forward MFI. If in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized,
the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a write off is later recovered, the recovery is recognized in the
‘Other operating income’.

Impairment charge on loans and advances has been disclosed in detail in Note 4.7.3.A to
the financial statements.

Impairment of investment in equity instrument classified as fair value though other
comprehensive income

Objective evidence of impairment of investment in an equity instrument is a significant
or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost. Impairment losses are recognized
by reclassifying the losses accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or
loss. The cumulative loss that is reclassified from equity to profit or loss is the difterence
between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss recognized previously in profit or loss.

3.5 Property and Equipment

a) Recognition and Measurement

Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the assets will flow to Forward MFI and the cost of the asset can be
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reliably measured. The cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the assets.

All Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss if any.

Any gain or losses on de-recognition of an item of property and equipment is recognized
in profit or loss. Forward MFI adopts cost model for entire class of property and
equipment. It has not measured any Property Plant and Equipment under revaluation
model. Details has been presented in note no. 4.11 to the financial statements.

b) Depreciation

Property and equipment's are depreciated from the date they are available for use on
property on straight line basis over estimated useful lives as estimated by the management.
Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss. Charging of depreciation is ceased from the
earlier of the date from which the asset is classified as held for sale or is derecognized.
The estimated useful lives of significant items of property and equipment for current
year and comparative periods are as follows:

| Class of assets and their useful lives |

Class of Assets Useful life
Building 20 years
Vehicles 6 years
Computer and accessories 10 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Equipment and others 10 years
Leasehold properties 5 years

3.6 Intangible assets
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

The intangible asset with finite useful lives is amortized over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
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embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of intangible assets for current year and
comparative periods are as follows:

Class of Assets Useftul Life

Computer and server software 5 years

This has been presented in Note No. 4.12 to the financial statements

3.7 Investment Property
Investment property is the land or building or both held either for rental income or
tor capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in ordinary course of business and
owner-occupied property.

This also includes land, land and building acquired as non-banking assets by Forward
MFT but not sold.

Forward MFT does not have any investment properties as on Ashad end 2081.

3.8 Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities
Microfinance deposits consist of money placed into Forward MFI by its members. These
deposits are made to saving deposit accounts of member.

Forward MFT doesn’t have any debt securities and subordinated liabilities as on Ashadh
end 2081.

3.9 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when Forward MFI has a present, legal or constructive,
obligation as a result of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and when the amount can be reliably estimated.
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The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of” the time value of money is material).
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is:

* apossible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity; or

* present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

o itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will

be required to settle the obligation; or

o the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
tuture events not wholly within the control of the entity.
Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at
each reporting period.

The details of the contingent liabilities of Forward Microfinance are disclosed in Note
no. 4.26 to the financial statements.

3.10 Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission income, etc. Revenue is
recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Forward
MFT and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is not recognized during the
period in which its recoverability of income is not probable. The bases of incomes
recognition are as below:

Interest income
Interest income is recognized in profit or loss using eftective interest method. Effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and
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receipts through the expected life of financial asset or liability to the carrying amount
of the asset or liability. The calculation of effective interest rate includes all transactions
cost and fee and points paid or received that are integral part of the effective interest. The
transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets.

However, Microfinance has used carve-outs as decided by ASB Nepal meeting number
143 on implementation of effective interest rate.

*  NFRS 9 Financial Instruments; The calculation of the effective interest rate includes
all fees and points paid or received unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine
reliably. Forward Microfinance applied this carve-outs that it is impracticable and
immaterial to determine reliably the service fees on loans and advances hence, effective
interest rate used in loans and advances exclude the service charge income.

Interest income presented in statement of profit or loss includes:

* Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost calculated on an
accrual basis where accrued interest over 365 days have been deferred and not capitalized.
These financial assets include loans and advances to customers.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income includes the service fee on loan, remittance fee income,
commission income from insurance. Service fees that are integral to the effective interest
rate on a financial asset are included in measurement of effective interest rate. However,
Microfinance has applied carve-outs on effective interest rate and hence has recognized
service fee in profit or loss in full on accrual basis, net of any service fee refund.

Dividend income
Dividend is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.

Net trading income

Results arising from trading activities include all gains and losses from changes in fair
value and related interest income or expense and dividends for financial assets and
financial liabilities held for trading. This includes any ineftectiveness recorded in hedging
transactions.

3.11 Interest expense
Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits is recognized in statement
of profit or loss on an accrual basis.
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3.12 Employees Benefits

a) Short Term Employee Benefits

Forward MFT’s short term employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, allowances,
as provided in the law and other employee related expenses. Short term employee benefits
are measured on an undiscounted basis and are charged to statement of profit and loss as
and when the related service is provided.

b) Post-Employment Benefit Plan
Post-employment benefit plan includes followings:

i. Defined Contribution Plan

Post-Employment benefits plan under which Forward MFT pays a fixed contribution to
a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future amounts are
categorized under defined contribution plans. The contributions to defined contribution
plans are recognized in profit or loss as and when the services are rendered by employees.

a) Employees Provident Fund

In accordance with law, all employees of Forward MFT are entitled to receive benefits
under the provident fund, a defined contribution plan in which both the employee and
Forward MFT contribute monthly at a pre-determined rate (currently, 10% of the basic
salary plus grade amount). Microfinance does not assume any future liability for provident
tund benefits other than its annual contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. Forward MFT's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted
to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of
any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on high
quality corporate bonds, that have maturity dates approximating the terms of Forward
MFT's obligation and that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits are
expected to be paid. The calculation of obligation is performed annually by a qualified
actuary using projected unit credit method.

Forward MFT recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans
immediately in other comprehensive income and all other expenses related to defined
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benefits plans in employee benefit are expensed in profit or loss, as valued by the actuary.
The following are the defined benefit plans provided by Forward MFT to its employees:

a) Gratuity

Actuarial valuation has been made for determining the liability for gratuity and its cost
as per the requirements of NAS 19 Employee benefits and reflected in the presented
financial statements.

c) Other Long term Employee Benefits

a) Leave Encashment

The employees of Forward MFT are entitled to carry forward a part of their unavailed/
unutilized leave subject to a maximum limit. The employees can encash unavailed /
unutilized leave partially in terms of Employee Service Byelaws of Forward MFI. Actuarial
valuation has been made for determining the leave liability as per the requirements of
NAS 19 Employee benefits and reflected in the presented financial statements

3.13 Leases

At inception of a contract, an entity shall assess whether the contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As per NFRS 16, At the commencement date, a lessee shall recognise a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability, unless the lease is for short term or of low value in which case lease
expense 1s recognized over the term of lease on straight line basis.

At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset at cost.
The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability

e any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee

At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, i’ that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate.
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After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset applying a
cost model at cost less accumulated depreciation less accumulated impairment losses.
After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability by:

* increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;

* reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made

The Right-of-use assets are presented in Note 4.11 to the financial statements under
Property and Equipment.

3.14 Share capital and reserves

Financial instruments issued are classified as equity when there is no contractual
obligation to transfer cash, other financial assets or issue available number of own equity
instruments. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown
in equity as deduction net of taxes from the proceeds.

The reserve includes regulatory and free reserves.

Statutory General Reserves

20% ot the net profit as stated in Bank and financial Institution Act, 2073 and 50% of
additional amount of' Cash Dividend and Bonus Shares if declared and distributed in
excess of 15% as provisioned is set aside to the general reserve.

Movement in statutory general reserve during this fiscal year is presented in Statement
of Changes in equity.

Exchange Equalization Reserve

This is statutory reserve created in compliance with BAFIA. 25% of the revaluation gain
on the foreign currency, other than Indian currency, computed as per regulatory books is
set aside to Exchange Equalization Reserve.

Capital reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and represents the amount of all the capital nature
reserves such as the amounts arising from share forfeiture, capital grants and capital
reserve arising out of business combinations. Funds in this reserve are not available
for distribution of cash dividend but can be capitalized by issuing bonus shares upon
obtaining prior approval from the central bank.

Corporate Social Responsibility Fund
1% of net profit and 10% of additional amount of Cash Dividend and Bonus Shares if
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declared and distributed in excess of 15% as provisioned is set aside in the fund as per the
NRB Directives for the purpose of corporate social responsibility.

| Movement in CSR Fund during the fiscal year 2080/81 |

Particulars Amount (NPR.)
Opening balance 26,960,843
Additions to fund: 2,908,537

1% of Net profit 2,908,537
Deductions from fund: (1,931,173)

CSR expenses (1,931,173)
Closing balance 27,938,207

Investment Adjustment Fund
[t is a reserve created on investment in equity instrument if’ the equity doesn’t get listed
in Security Market within 2 years as per the directives issued by NRB.

Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of Forward MFTI to this
reserve as per the directives of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and
which shall not be regarded as free for distribution of dividend shall be presented under
this reserve.

Movement in Regulatory reserves during this fiscal year is presented in Statement of
Changes in equity. The amount allocated to regulatory reserve for the year has been
presented in Statement of distributable profit or loss.

Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve

The amount of actuarial gains/losses both positive or negative to this reserve as per the
directives of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be
regarded as free reserve for distribution of dividend are recorded in this reserve. The
reserve includes actuarial gain/(loss) net of tax on defined benefit plan.

Client protection fund

Client protection fund is created at 1% of net profit. In addition to this 35% of additional
amount of" cash dividend and bonus shares if declared and distributed in excess of 15%
as provisioned is also allocated to this fund as per NRB Directives.
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Movement in the Client Protection Fund the fiscal year 2080/81
Particulars Amount (NPR.)
Opening balance 126,293,451
Additions to fund: 7,259,378

1% of Net profit 2,908,537

Interest income allocated to fund 4,350,841
Deductions from fund: (9,023,027)

Client protection expenses (9,023,027)

Closing balance 124,529,802

Restructured loan write back reserve

The amount of write back income from the restructured loans and advances, net of
income tax has been kept aside to this reserve by debiting the retained earnings. The
amount will be credited back to retained earnings once the loan instalment from the
restructured loan become continuously regular for 6 months.

Proposed Dividend
The board of Forward MFI has proposed and recommended 13.30% bonus shares and
0.70% cash dividend for the financial year 2080-81.

3.15 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year by the
weighted average number of equities shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year as adjusted
for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable
taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average
number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their
conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing
ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the
beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

3.16 Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of Forward MFI that engages in business activities
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trom which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that
relating to transactions with any of Forward MFTI’s other components, whose operating
results are reviewed by the management to make decision about resource allocation to
each segment and assess its performance. Forward MFT has identified and reported seven
operating segments as per province wise.

4 Explanatory Notes
The explanatory notes and significant disclosure relating to the financial statements are
as follows:

4.1 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Statutory balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank for compulsory cash reserve, securities
purchased from Nepal Rastra Bank under resale agreement and other deposits with and
receivables from Nepal Rastra Bank has been presented under this account head. This is
included in Note No. 4.2 to the Financial Statements.

4.2 Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

Placements with domestic as well as foreign bank and financial institutions with original
maturities of more than three months from the acquisition date are presented under this
account head. This is included in Note No. 4.3 to the Financial Statements.

4.3 Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative instruments include transactions like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward
toreign exchange contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes.
Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date
and are subsequently re-measured to fair value at each reporting date.

However, Forward MFI does not have such instruments as on Ashadh end 2081.

4.4 Loans and advances to customers

Outstanding amount of all loans and advances extended to the customers other than
BFTs as well as bills purchased and discounted less the amount of impairment allowances
shall be presented. Loan to employees provided according to the Employees Bylaws of
Forward MFT has also been presented under this head. This is included in Note No. 4.7
to the Financial Statements.

4.5 Other Trading Assets
Financial assets are classified as trading assets if they have been acquired prineipally for
the purpose of selling in the near term, or form part of a portfolio of identified financial
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instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern
of short- term profit taking. They are recognized on trade date, when Forward MFI
enters into contractual arrangements with counterparties, and are normally derecognized
when sold. They are initially measured at fair value, with transaction costs taken to profit
or loss.

Subsequent changes in their fair values are recognized in profit or loss in ‘Net trading
income’. However, Forward MFI does not have such assets to be recognized as trading
assets as on Ashadh end 2081.

4.6 Investment securities

Investments made by Forward MFT in financial instruments has been presented under
this account head in three categories i.e., investment securities designated at fair value
through profit or loss, investment securities measured at amortized cost and investment
in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Where income
from the investment is received in the form of bonus shares, the valuation of investment
shall be made by increasing the number of shares only without changing in the cost of
investment. This is included in Note No. 4.8 to the Financial Statements.

4.7 Income Tax

4.7.1 Current Tax

Current tax is the income tax expense recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss,
except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or OCI in which case
it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income. Current tax is the amounts
expected or paid to Inland Revenue Department in respect of the current year, using the
tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

4.7.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the balance sheet and the amounts attributed to such assets and
liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected to apply in the periods in which
the assets will be realized or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted, or
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substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they arise in the same tax reporting
group and relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority, and when the
group has a legal right to oftset.

The details of deferred tax are shown in Note no. 4.13 to the financial statements.

4.8 Due to Bank and financial institution

The balances in accounts maintained with the institution by other local and foreign
banks and financial institution has been presented under this head. Interbank borrowing,
interbank deposit, balances on settlement and clearing accounts as well as other amount
due to bank and financial institution has also been presented under this account head in
Note No. 4.15 to the financial statements.

4.9 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

This account head shall also contain the amount of payable to Nepal Rastra Bank. Amount
payable to NRB shall include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity facility,
lender of last resort, sale and repurchase agreements, deposit from NRB etc.

4.10 Deposits from Customers

All deposit accounts other than deposit from BFIs (local and foreign) and NRB has been
presented under this account head. This have been presented in Note no. 4.18 to the
financial statements.

4.11 Fees and Commission Expense

Payment on account of fee and commission for services obtained by Forward MFI has
been presented under this account head. This account head shall include card related fees,
guarantee commission, brokerage expenses etc. This is presented in Note No. 4.30 to the
Financial Statements.

4.12 Net trading income

Trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities,
and includes all realized interest, dividend and foreign exchange differences as well as
unrealized changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities has been presented under
this account head. This is presented in Note No. 4.31 to the Financial Statements.
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4.13 Other operating income

Receipt of all other operating income not specifically provided under the income heads
above has been booked and presented under this head. This includes foreign exchange
revaluation gain, gain/loss on sale of investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income, dividend on investment at fair value through other comprehensive income, gain/
loss on sale of property and equipment, gain/loss on sale of investment properties, lease
income, gain/loss on sale of gold and silver, etc. This is presented in note no. 4.32 to the
Financial Statements.

4.14 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

It includes impairment charge/reversal on loan and advances to customers, loan and
advances to bank and financial institutions, investment securities, placement with bank
and financial institutions, property and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets,
investment properties etc.

This is presented in note no. 4.33 to the Financial Statements.

4.15 Personnel Expense

All expenses related to employees of Forward MFI has been included under this head.
Expenses covered under this head include employees' salary, allowances, pension, gratuity,
contribution to provident fund, training expenses, uniform expenses, insurance, staft
bonus, Finance expense under NFRSs, cash-settled share-based payments etc. This is
presented in note no. 4.34 to the Financial Statements.

4.16 Other operating expense

All operating expense other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized
and presented under this account head. The expenses covered under this account head
includes office administration expense, other operating and overhead expense, directors'
emoluments, remuneration and non-audit fee paid to auditors, professional and legal
expense, branch closure cost expense, redundancy cost expense, expense of restructuring,
expense of corporate social responsibility, onerous lease provisions etc. This is presented
in Note No. 4.35 to the Financial Statements.

4.17 Depreciation & Amortisation

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over
its useful life. Amortization is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of
an intangible asset over its useful life. Depreciation measured and recognized as per
NFRSs on property and equipment, right-of-use assets, and investment properties, and
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amortization of intangible assets has been presented under this account head. This is
presented in Note No. 4.36 to the Financial Statements.

4.18 Non-operating income/expense

The income and expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of
transactions of Forward MFT has been presented under this head. The income/expense
covered under this account head includes loan written off, recovery of loan, redundancy
provision, expense of restructuring etc. This is presented in Note No. 4.37 to the Financial
Statements.

4.19 Income tax Expense

The amount of income tax determined as per the rules of tax authority and any deferred
tax effect as per NAS 12 Income taxes has been recognized and presented under this
account head. This is presented in Note No. 4.39 to the Financial Statements.

5 Disclosures & Additional Information

5.1 Risk Assessment and Management
Forward MFT has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:
e credit risk;
* liquidity risk;
*  market risks; and
* operational risk.
Forward MFT's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of Forward MFT’s risk management framework.

Credit Risk
Credit risk’ is the risk of financial loss to Forward MFI if a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from Forward MFT’s loans and advances to customers. For risk management reporting
purposes, Forward MFI considers and consolidates all elements ot credit risk exposure
— e.g. individual obligor default risk, country and sector risk.
Forward MFT has applied following mitigates for management of Credit Risk factors:
¢ Formulating credit policies in consultation with business units, covering collateral
requirements, credit assessment, risk grading and reporting, documentary and
legal procedures, and compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements.
¢ Establishing the authorisation structure for the approval and renewal of credit
facilities.
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* Reviewing and assessing credit risk: Microfinance Credit assesses all credit
exposures in excess of designated limits, before facilities are committed to
customers by the business unit concerned. Renewals and reviews of facilities are
subject to the same review process.

¢ Reviewing compliance of business units with agreed exposure limits

* Providing advice, guidance and specialist skills to business units to promote best
practice throughout Forward MFI in the management of credit risk.

Such mitigates are monitored by Board of Directors, Risk Management Committee, Risk
Department, NRB Inspection team and Internal Audit Department of Forward MFIL.

Market Risk

Market risk is the possibility of a customer experiencing losses due to factors that affect
the overall performance of Forward MFI in which the customer is involved. Market risk
is systematic risk of the financial market.

Factors of Market Risk include Interest Rate Risk, Equity Risk.

Forward MFT has applied following mitigates for management of the Market Risk factors:
*  Stress testing/simulation of market conditions
e Gap Analysis
* Regular review of risk management processes
¢ Regular review of Risk Tolerance and appetite limit.
*  Measurement of Interest Rate Shocks
e Interest rate related Risk Monitoring.

Such mitigates are monitored by Board of Directors, Risk Management Committee,
Internal Audit Department

Liquidity Risk

‘Liquidity risk’ is the risk that Forward MFI will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises from mismatches in the timing and amounts
of cash flows, which is inherent to Forward MFT’s operations and investments.

Factors of Liquidity Risk includes Deterioration in quality of credit portfolio
Concentrations in either assets or liabilities, Rapid asset growth funded by highly volatile
large deposits, A large size of off-balance sheet exposure.
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Forward MFT has applied following mitigates for the management of Liquidity Risk:
* Appropriate composition of assets and liabilities
* Diversified and stable sources of funds
e Access to inter-bank market
¢ Contingency funding plan for crisis situations
*  Regular stress testing
e Cushion of liquid assets held
*  Consistent analysis using liquidity ratios
¢ Review of Deposit Mix Concentration.
Such mitigates are monitored by BOD, Finance and Credit Department, Internal Audit
Department.

Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Fair Value of financial assets and liabilities risk management includes effective porttolio
management by finance department which is monitored by BOD, and other high-level
officials.

5.2 Capital Management

The capital management approach of Forward MFI is driven by its desire to maintain a
strong capital base to support the development of its business and to meet the regulatory
capital requirements at all times.

As Capital is the centre piece of Forward MFI’s performance matrix, a sound capital
management forms the very core of the overall performance landscape to ensure that
Forward MFT delivers on its objective of maximizing the shareholder’s value. The senior
management of Forward MFI is engaged and responsible for prudent capital management
at all times. In compliance with the regulatory requirement of increasing the capital base
as prescribed by the Central Bank, Forward MFI is comfortable in meeting the minimum
capital requirements and is strongly positioned to meet the performance benchmarks.

5.3 Risk Management Function

Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha is exposed to various types of risks
including credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal, compliance and reputation risks. The
objective of the risk management framework at Forward MFTI is to ensure that various
risks are understood, measured and monitored and that the policies and procedures
established to address these risks are strictly adhered to. Forward MFI has set up a strong
control and monitoring environment for comprehensive risk management at all levels of
operation.
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Measurement of Risks for Capital Adequacy Purpose:

Under Pillar 1 of the specific NRB guidelines, the finance company currently follows
Simplified Standardized Approach for Credit Risk, Basic Indicator Approach for
Operational Risk and Net Open Position approach for Market risk.

A. Credit Risk

Strategies and Process:

All credit related aspects are governed by Operation Manual of Forward MFI. These
documents outline the type of products that can be offered, customer categories, credit
approval process and limits. These documents are approved by the Board of” directors.
Forward MFI Company’s main emphasis is on Microfinance credit to deprived sectors.
Different limits of lending power have been assigned at branch level, department head
level and the credit committee level. Every aspect relating to credit such as procedure,

documentation etc. are clearly defined in the Operation Manual and the Credit Policy of
Forward MFI.

Pre-Sanction:

The branch managers have the authority to approve the credit within their permissible
limits after due scrutiny of background of the member, nature of business, turnover in
the account, other financial indicators, income, collateral and security. Loans above the
authority of branch are recommended to central credit department for further decision.
Credit Risk Assessment Process:

Risk Management Department carries out a comprehensive credit risk assessment
process that encompasses analysis of relevant quantitative and qualitative information to
ascertain credit rating of the borrower. The credit rating process involves assessment of
risk emanating from various sources such as market risk, management risk, environmental
risk, financial risk and security risk taking into consideration as much as 30 sub-parameters
under each of these categories. Credit thresholds have been set for forwarding the credit
files for risk rating before they are submitted for approval in the credit committee by the
concerned credit units.

Post Sanction Monitoring/ Follow up:

Concerned branch are required to obtain regular information of the business. In case of
revolving loans, the drawing power is checked commensurate with the existing level of
stocks and working capital checked and verified at regular interval. The credit units at
the Head Office are also required to prepare quarterly credit report to submit at higher
level as a part of formal monitoring process.
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B. Operation Risk

Operational risk is the risk of" loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people or systems, or from external events. Operational risk is inherent in Forward MFT’'s
business activities.

The board level committee that undertakes supervision and review of operational risk aspects
are the Risk Management Committee and Audit Committee. The board and the risk committee
review the operational risk level and the material operational risk exposure. The Audit committee
supervises audit and compliance related aspects. Internal Audit department on the other hand
carries out audit according to the audit plan and reports findings to the audit committee.

Risk Arising from breakdown of Information and Operating System:

Forward MFI has implemented centralized software URANUS Core Banking Software
and has improved in its MIS infrastructure in order to ensure the associated operational
risks being brought down to an acceptably low level.

To sateguard the probable losses resulting from system failure or natural disaster,
Forward MFT has taken following policies to minimize the risk:

a. Back up — Daily back up of all balances are taken at the end of the day. Forward
MFT is developing a system of auto back up in the near future.

Disaster Recovery Site — Forward MFI has established disaster recovery site.

c. Validation of Entry and Password control — There is a system of maker and
checker for entry validation before posting. Access authority for data entry,
update, modification and validation has been given on the basis of levels of stafts.

d. Exception Reporting —The system creates exception report as and when required.

Risk Arising from Procedural Lapses and Internal control:

Forward MFI has defined every banking procedure in the Operation Manual related
to banking transactions. Internal circulars are issued whenever required. Reporting by
branches is regular.

Corporate Governance:
NRB Guidelines with respect to Corporate Governance are duly complied with.

C. Market Risk

a. Investments

Currently Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha has not made any investment
for trading purpose.
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b. Foreign Exchange

Forward MFT’s policy is to maintain the net open position of convertible foreign currency
where exchange rate risk persists in matching position. At present, Forward microfinance
doesn’t deal in foreign currency So, there is no any foreign exchange risk at forward
microfinance.

5.4 Segment Analysis

5.4.1 General Information

Forward MFT’s operation is managed centrally through Head Office. All strategic, financial
and operational policies and operations are controlled and directed from the head office
through province offices. Forward MFT operates in 159 branches with province wise.

Forward MFT has identified following segments as reportable:

a. Koshi Province

b. Madhesh Province

c.  Bagmati Province

d. Gandaki Province

e. Lumbini Province

t. Sudurpashchim Province
g. Karnali Province

There 1s no inter-unit cost transfer mechanism within Forward MFI.

5.4.2 The segmental information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities are
presented below

Koshi Province Madhesh Province Bagmati Province Gandaki Province
Ashad end 2081 |Ashad end 2080 [Ashad end 2081 [Ashad end 2080 |Ashad end 2081 |Ashad end 2080 |Ashad end 2081 |[Ashad end 2080
1,316,015,403 1,342,027,913 1,133,358,241 1,075,524,768 113,025,088 95,483,657 26,086,474 16,011,637
277,860,363 230,310,930 241,018,721 239,624,855 22,831,528 15,549,446 4,647,332 (2,073,348)
9,128,481,546 8,404,107,215 7,506,406,236 6,784,563,270 701,764,667 607,629,266 128,393,895 109,667,773
9,128,481,546 8,404,107,215 7,506,406,236 6,784,563,270 701,764,667 607,629,266 128,393,895 109,667,773
Lumbini Province Karnali Province Sudurpaschim Province Total
Ashad end 2081 |Ashad end 2080 |Ashad end 2081 [Ashad end 2080 [Ashad end 2081 |Ashad end 2080 |Ashad end 2081 [Ashad end 2080
476,997,973 439,353,168 29,179,623 26,184,057 273,868,662 283,622,949 3,368,531,466 3,278,208,148
74,654,776 (5,057,653) 6,559,224 570,784 50,837,442 28,028,838 678,409,386 506,953,851
2,892,581,322 2,801,437,897 187,169,587 180,751,204 1,802,773,060 1,769,675,629 22,347,570,312 20,657,832,253
2,892,581,322 2,801,437,897 187,169,587 180,751,204 1,802,773,060 1,769,675,629 22,347,570,312 20,657,832,253
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5.4.3 Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and
liabilities:

Particulars Ashad end 2081 Ashad end 2080
(NPR.) (NPR.)

Total profit or loss before tax for reportable segments 678,409,386 506,953,851

Unallocated amounts:

Other corporate expense and NFRS adjustments (253,125,093) (393,114,760)

Profit before tax 425,284,293 113,839,092

Information about major customer:
None of the customer individually or as a group contributes to 10% or more of Forward
MFT's revenue.

5.5 Share options and share based payment
There is no share-based payment made by Forward MFI.

5.6 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Litigation is a common occurrence in the banking industry due to the nature of business
undertaken. Forward MFI company has formal controls and policies for managing legal
claims. Once professional advice has been obtained and the amount of loss reasonably
estimated, Forward MFI makes adjustment to account for adverse effect which the claims
may have on its financial standing. Contingent liabilities on other matters have already
been disclosed in notes 4.28.

5.7 Related party disclosures
The related parties of Forward MFI which meets the definition of related parties as
defined in “NAS 24 Related Parties Disclosure” are as follows:

i. Key Management Personnel (KMP)

The key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility
of planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly
including any director. The key management of Forward MFI includes members of  its
Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and senior management personnel of
Forward MFI.

The members of Board of Directors are entitled for meeting allowances. Salary and
allowances are provided to Chief Executive Ofticer and other member of Key Management
Personnel (KMP). Salary and Allowances paid to the Chief Executive Officer is based on
the contract entered by Forward MFI with him whereas compensation paid to other
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member of KMP are governed by Employees Byelaws and decisions made by management
time to time in this regard. In addition to salaries and allowances, non- cash benefits like
vehicle facility, termination benefits are also provided to KMP.

The details relating to compensation paid to directors during the fiscal year 2080/81
were as follows:

Particulars Amount (NPR.)
Meeting Fees 1,240,000
Other Expenses 594,276
Total 1,834,276

The details relating to compensation paid to other key management personnel other than
directors were as follows:

Particulars Amount (NPR.)
Short term employee benefits (including Bonus and Paid Leave) 9,626,923

5.8 Merger and acquisition
No any Merger and acquisition has taken in the fiscal year presented.

5.9 Additional Disclosure of Non-consolidated entities
Since, Forward MFI company does not have any subsidiaries, there are no such non-
consolidated entities.

5.10 Restructured loans and advances

As per the Nepal Rastra Bank circular no. GHA/2/080/81 dated 2080/09/08, Nepal Rastra
Bank has allowed microfinance entities to restructure and/or reschedule the loan and advances
for disbursement up to the period of" Chaitra 2080 as per the following conditions:

e Loan account to be restructured must be classified as performing in Ashad 2080.

¢ Extending repayment schedule by up to one year only.

* Loan loss provision to be made as 5% on such loans.

e Write back on such restructured loan should be transferred to separate reserve
account by debiting the retained earnings. Dividend and staft’ bonus cannot be
paid from this amount of write back.

e The restructured loan account can only be classified as good and write back
amount can only be credited back to retained earnings and staff bonus and
dividend paid from it once the loan instalments become regular for continuous 6
months.

* Interest must be received as 5% of the interest receivable amount on such loan
account.
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* Interest receivable on such restructured loans cannot be capitalized and booked

as interest income.

The disclosure relating to restructured/rescheduled loans and advances as on Ashad end

2081 are as follows:

No. of restructured loan

15885

Restructured loan and advances outstanding (NPR.)

2,113,261,990

Staft bonus provision pertaining to the write back of restructured loan and advances has
been disclosed as contingent liability in note no. 4.26 to the financial statements and the
details of reserve transfer is disclosed in statement of distributable profit or loss.

5.11 Classification of Loans and advances including its provisioning (As per NRB

Directive 2)

Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Classification of loans and advances including provisioning -Ashad 2081

Particulars ?;}?lgl;t
Gross Loans and Advances:

Performing loans and advances 19,483,418,160
Pass loan 15,850,820,434
Watchlist 1,519,335,736
Restructured 2,113,261,990
Non-Performing loans and advances 1,425,836,979
Substandard 346,075,146
Doubtful 183,415,331
Loss 896,346,503
Total Loans and advances 20,909,255,140
Loan loss Provision: 1,680,507,236
Pass loan 206,131,365
Watchlist 75,755,807
Restructured 105,663,105
Substandard 86,272,965
Doubtful 91,591,467
Loss 896,346,503
Additional 218,746,024
Net Loans and advances 19,228,747,904
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